BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FIRE CHIEF

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair Charles A. Moore

Kitty Jung, Vice-Chair

Bob Lucey

Vaughn Hartung ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Jeanne Herman David Watts-Vial

e ————
WASHOE COUNTY
PROTECTION DISTRICT

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

PROTECTION DISTRICT

Notice of Joint Meeting and Agenda
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
9:00 a.m.
Tuesday, August 18, 2015
Washoe County Administrative Complex, Commission Chambers
1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada

NOTE: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to
the agenda of another meeting; moved to or from the Consent section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a
specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.

The Washoe County Commission Chambers is accessible to the disabled. If you require special arrangements for the
meeting, call the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Office, 326-6000, 24-hours prior to the meeting.

Time Limits. Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters, whether listed on the
agenda or not, and are limited to three minutes per person. Additionally, public comment of three minutes per person will
be heard during individual action items on the agenda. Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting. Persons may not allocate unused time to other
speakers.

Forum Restrictions and Orderly Conduct of Business. The Board conducts the business of the District and its citizens
during its meetings. The presiding officer may order the removal of any person whose statement or other conduct disrupts
the orderly, efficient or safe conduct of the meeting. Warnings against disruptive comments or behavior may or may not
be given prior to removal. The viewpoint of a speaker will not be restricted, but reasonable restrictions may be imposed
upon the time, place and manner of speech. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious statements and personal attacks which
antagonize or incite others are examples of speech that may be reasonably limited.

Responses to Public Comments. The Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda
properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed
on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board.
However, responses from Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter
without notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board
will consider, the Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies,
ask for staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The Board may do this either during the public
comment item or during the following item: “*Commissioners’/Chief’s Announcements, Requests for Information,
Topics for Future Agendas and Statements Relating to Items Not on the Agenda™.




TMFPD — SFPD Joint BOFC Agenda, Aug 18, 2015
Page 2 of 3

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, the Agenda for the Board of Fire Commissioner Meetings has been posted at the following
locations: Washoe County Administration Building (1001 E. 9™ Street, Bldg. A), Washoe County Courthouse-District
Court Administrator/Clerk of Court (75 Court Street), Washoe County Central Library (301 South Center Street) and
Sparks Justice Court (1675 East Prater Way) and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s website at

www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd

Support documentation for the items on the agenda, provided to the Board of Fire Commissioners is available to
members of the public at the District’s Admin Office (1001 E. 9th Street, Bldg. D, Pl Floor, Reno, Nevada)
Sandy Francis, Administrative Assistant I, phone (775) 328-6124 and on the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District’s website at www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd ; and https://notice.nv.gov.

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible
action” were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for
which no action will be taken.

9:00am *1. Salute to the Flag
*2. Call to order/roll call for each entity.

*3.  Public Comment - Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per person
and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners agenda. The
District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with comment limited
to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners
as a whole.

4.  Consent Items: Approval of minutes from the Concurrent Meeting on June 15, 2015 and the
Board of Fire Commissioners meeting on July 21, 2015.

*5.  Presentation of Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District new employees.
Kim Paholke, Account Clerk
Gregory Cates, Firefighter Paramedic
Meredith Brandon, Firefighter Paramedic
Andrew Mann, Firefighter Paramedic
David Rathburn, Firefighter Paramedic
Nikolaus Raw, Firefighter Paramedic

*6. Fire Chief Report:
A. Report and discussion related to fire district operations
B. Report/update related to Station 14
C. Career Statistics’ and Report for July 2015
D. Volunteer Statistics’ and Report for July 2015

7. Presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on Computer
Aided Dispatch (CAD) to CAD link between Reno, Washoe County, Sparks and REMSA
dispatch centers.

8.  Presentation, discussion and possible action to accept a presentation from the 2015 Kids Fire
Camp Leadership Committee.



TMFPD — SFPD Joint BOFC Agenda, Aug 18, 2015
Page 3 of 3

9. Presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on District Ash Can
Program.

Public Hearing — (Note: Items listed under this heading only will be heard at or after the noted
time. In no case will they be heard before the stated time. Due to public testimony and
discussion, time expended on the items in this category can vary.)

The following Item # 10 will be heard solely by the Sierra Fire Protection District Board of Fire
Commissioners

10. Public Hearing and possible action to approve a Lease Agreement between Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection and the United States Bureau of Land Management for property
located at 1105 Longview Drive, Reno NV., APN 081-040-01.

*11. Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for information, topics for future
agendas, and statements relating to items not on the Agenda. (No discussion among
Commissioners will take place on this item).

*12. Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per person
and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners agenda. The
District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with comment limited
to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners
as a whole.

13. Adjournment.



BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MONDAY 1:30 P.M. JUNE 15, 2015

CONCURRENT MEETING

PRESENT:

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner
Bob Lucey, Commissioner

Jaime Dellera, Deputy County Clerk
John Slaughter, County Manager
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel

ABSENT:

Jeanne Herman, Commissioner

The Washoe County Board of Commissioners convened at 1:35 p.m. in
special session with the Reno City Council and the Board of Fire Commissioners for the
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District/Sierra Fire Protection District in the Reno City
Council Chamber, One East First Street, Reno, Nevada, with Chair Berkbigler presiding.
Following the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of our Country, the Deputy Clerk called
the roll and the Board conducted the following business:

15-091F AGENDA ITEM 4 — Public Comment

On the call for public comment, William T. Steward stated he appreciated
the City Council, County Commissioners and Fire Departments coming together to solve
their differences and determine the best practices to serve the public. He hoped everyone
could sift through information and details to do the right thing. He believed the
discussions should center on the fire departments, but also include the Emergency
Medical Services (EMS), police, Truckee Meadows Community College (TMCC) and
University of Nevada Reno (UNR) as well to quantify a true public safety model.

Steven Perez stated he was a retired firefighter and had been actively
involved in fire issues for the past six years. He discussed the history of the past fire
agreement between the City of Reno and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
(TMFPD) stating the reason it did not work was the City refused to put fire tax monies
into a dedicated fire fund. Instead, the funds were put in the General Fund and as a result,
those monies were spent on things that were not fire related. He said the City chose to
close or brownout stations and, at that time, the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD)

AGENDA ITEM #4
JUNE 15,2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 1



ended up responding to and taking care of the City’s citizens by providing paramedics
with no compensation. He said firefighting was supposed to be about the people they
were tasked to protect, without regard for jurisdiction. He said we should be able to come
up with a simplistic plan that would work for everyone no matter where they lived.

Jeff Church explained a Reno Ballot Measure Initiative passed in 1996 for
additional firefighters and when it went into effect in 1998, Reno had approximately 226
firefighters and now there were only 204. He thought paying $4 million in taxes for
additional firefighters that they were not going to get was wrong. He said those taxes
were going into the General Fund when the Somersett and Skyline fire stations had been
closed 98 percent to 100 percent of the time, which put the public in danger. He noted
under the present union contract for 4-man crews if one called in sick then the other three
would not be allowed to stay at that station; they would be transferred to another station.
The Somersett fire station was empty except for the apparatus, which meant the
equipment would not be taken care of and would rust. He said this affected automatic aid
because no one was there to provide aid to Verdi or the County areas when it was needed.
He said the Blue Ribbon Committee (BRC) Report indicated efﬁcrency and effectiveness
were sacrificed for local control. .

Jerry Gamroth stated fire personnel and their families should not have to
worry about how to pay for injuries, long-term care or if their retirement contributions
were current. He said if he was a Reno resident; he would be concerned that no money
was appropriated to train and certify paramedics and to equip their apparatus with
Advanced Life Support (ALS). He said he knew most of the Council and Commissioners
were newly elected and did not create-the current financial sins, but County residents
should also not be responsible for them. He thought regionalization was just a “buzz”
word to cover up progress with'regard to consolidation and he felt that was not right. He
said the lack of transparency upset.a lot of people and the fact that Sparks, Pyramid Lake
and North Lake Tahoe were not present at the meetings was not a way to move ahead
with the regional concept. He:said spending more money on staff for a merge or
consolidation was a waste of money and he hoped the Commissioners would protect their
County taxpayers with respect to automatic aid.

Robei‘t Parker provided a brief background of the Interlocal Agreement,
by stating that in 2000 the TMFPD hired the SFPD to operate the TMFPD. TMFPD
provided the rolling stock, fire engines, trucks, water tenders and fire stations and paid
Reno to operate and maintain them. The contracts provided that the County would get
back the equipment and the stations in good shape upon expiration; however, that was not
the case. He said all of the rolling stock required major repairs and three of the fire
engines were inoperable. Engine 18 in Cold Springs and Engine 13 in Silver Lake had
tire cords sticking out of the tires and were leaking motor oil and transmission fluid;
those were pieces of equipment that Reno was being paid to maintain. He said Engine 14
in Damonte Ranch continuously overheated and Brush Engine 14 had both front tires cut;
and both engines had dead batteries. The Brush Engine and Engine 16 in Washoe Valley
were four quarts low on oil and none of the fire extinguishers in the stations or on the fire
trucks had been serviced for three years. He concluded the equipment the TMFPD got

PAGE 2 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



back could not initially be used to respond to emergencies and all six of the fire stations
were filthy and had damage. He said it was important to remember that each one of those
stations had a Reno supervisor (Captain) on site and it was impossible to believe they did
not know that was going on. He wondered why the TMFPD would want anything to be
managed by Reno after discovering how all the equipment and stations had been
managed. Mr. Parker provided a handout, which was placed on file with the Clerk.

Jaime Dellera, Washoe County Deputy Clerk, explained Commissioner
Lucey received an email from Debbie Sheltra who requested that it be read into the
record. The email was placed on file with the Clerk.

Tom Motherway urged the Council and the Commissioners ‘to take
advantage of the legislative order regarding automatic aid. He thought that set a
foundation in the statute, which could be improved upon, but he hesitated to discuss
regionalization, joint power agreements or interlocal agreements until a couple of
conditions could be met. He thought there should be a fire tax in the City of Reno
allocated specifically for fire and EMS like there was for the County, so there would be
assured funding all the way through. He also believed there should be an independently
elected Fire Board across the whole region and said there should be union agreements to
provide for flexible staffing. He urged the Council and:the' Commissioners to go ahead
with automatic aid, because he felt that was impostant; however, he wanted them to keep
regionalization as a vision with respect to his conditions.

15-092F AGENDA ITEM 5 — Presentation, discussion and possible direction to
staff regarding an outline. of the process to develop and automatic aid
agreement including major components of automatic aid, cost, geographic
areas and a timeline for implementation.

There was no public comment on this item.

Dayid .Cochran, Reno Fire Department Interim Chief, stated the
Commissioners and'Council met on May 26th to discuss regionalization and at that time,
staff was directed to move forward with automatic aid and regionalization. Since that
time, Senate Bill (SB) 185 had been passed by the Legislature, which mandated that the
closest fire vehicle would respond to any brush or structure fire and the affected entities
were_to negotiate to reach an automatic aid agreement. He said those negotiations had
already begun and the only entity exempt from those’ negotiations was the Airport
Authority. He explained he had worked with the Reno City Manager to view the deal
points and had met with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) Chief
Charles Moore and his staff to discuss the details.

Interim Chief Cochran went over his presentation, which was placed on
file with the Clerk, highlighting the automatic aid negotiation points. Those points
included geographical limitations, analysis of career stations to determine where the
closest vehicles were, resource availability, service levels, training, service commitments
and reimbursement. He noted that the service levels would not be “like for like” as Reno

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 3



staffed their vehicles with 4-man crews and the TMFPD staffed their equipment with 3-
man crews. He believed training was going to be an issue. He said they would have to
identify areas of skill level, service delivery and where improvement needed to happen on
both sides. He believed the training was an opportunity which could be learned jointly
and effectively. He said service commitments were critical when a host agency would be
obligated to send sufficient resources to relieve the agency providing aid. He said it was
not clear if they needed a mechanism for reimbursement at this time, but it was one of the
mandated negotiation points within SB 185. He said dispatch was not a deal point, but
should be considered as a mechanism to be considered.

Interim Chief Cochran said the next step in the process was where to go
from here and what would be the time period for implementation of the automatic aid
agreement. The law goes into effect October 1, 2015; therefore, he said they intended to
have several meetings in the weeks to come. He thought the next step would be to
identify those deal points that everyone agreed upon and then look at the deal points that
needed to be negotiated.

Paul McKenzie, Reno City Councilmember, asked if Reno or the County
had reached out to Sparks since they were also involved in' SB 185. Interim Chief
Cochran responded they had not reached out to Sparks. Councilmember McKenzie stated
he was aware Reno had an agreement with Sparks for one particular area and the County
also had an aid agreement with Sparks, but he thought those would likely change under
the provisions of SB 185 based upon which station was closest to respond.

Councilmember McKenzie 'stated the Blue Ribbon Committee (BRC)
Report contained a section which indicated staffing did not comply with national
consensus standards NFPA 1710. He asked for an explanation of NFPA 1710. Interim
Chief Cochran stated that was the standard for service delivery with four people per
apparatus and he noted Reno CompIied with that standard.

Chair Berkblgler asked Interim Chief Cochran if he had a sense of how
long it would take the Chiefs to come up with a consensus to bring back to the Council
and the Commissioners. Interim Chief Cochran stated, in the interest of being consistent,
he thought 60.to 90 days would be realistic.

. ‘Commissioner Jung questioned the resource availability issue and
wondered if they had to prove that resources were not available or if that was something
that could be fabricated. Interim Chief Cochran stated he did not think it could be
fabricated because all of those resources were tracked. He said some apparatuses may be
out of service due to mechanical reasons. Commissioner Jung asked if the City of Reno
had an automatic aid agreement with the City of Sparks. Interim Chief Cochran stated
they did. Commissioner Jung asked if Sparks had to reimburse Reno, because they only
had 3-man crews. Interim Chief Cochran stated he would not characterize the agreement
as like-for-like because it was more like an exchange of services, but it was an important
point that needed to be addressed. Commissioner Jung stated she wanted the County to be

PAGE 4 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



treated as fairly as Sparks was being treated and she would like the Chiefs to pursue all
kinds of options.

Commissioner Jung questioned the joint training that law enforcement did,
which involved lots of different agencies. Interim Chief Cochran stated they did that for
12 years and on occasion they still had joint drills particularly with the regional teams
like Hazmat. The training exercises stopped due to budget constraints and the inability to
commit resources out of district. Commissioner Jung asked why the new recruits weren’t
trained together at one regionalized location. Interim Chief Cochran explained that the
entities hired at different times. Commissioner Jung said she understood that, but other
entities had one regional place and time for training. Interim Chief Cochran stated there
were division academies but Reno had not hired anyone for eight years. Commissioner
Jung asked if that could be worked toward in the future and Interim Chief Cochran said it
could. §

Commissioner Jung asked the Interim Chief to look at reimbursement to
see if data was ever tracked during the consolidation agreement and how much money
was exchanged for automatic aid. Interim Chief Cochran stated at that time they were
essentially one department and there wasn’t anything to track because there was no such
thing as automatic aid. He said since all the apparatus was owned by one entity, there was
just one dispatch and they sent whatever was available and closest. Commissioner Jung
felt it was going to come to reimbursement and a'cash-exchange before they could look at
anything such as regionalization, and she wanted that reimbursement policy to be agreed
upon in a contract. She noted the deconsolidation exposed a lot of new expenses and was
one of the main reasons why the deconsohdatlon occurred. She said the 4-man crew
versus the 3-man crew was not the reason: for the deconsolidation, but was a method for
union-busting. She wanted to keep. the transition clean and data-driven.

Chair Berkbigler asked legal counsel to remind the Commissioners that
there was still litigation ‘pending between the County and the City of Reno. Paul
Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, stated the litigation referred to was the complaint the City of
Reno filed against the TMFPD and there was still more action to be taken, which could
include counter-claims about the City’s performance under the contract. He stated talking
about those things-at this level among the members of the governing bodies could
potentlally be disruptive to the litigation. While he understood Commissioner Jung’s
interest in-learning from past experiences and not wanting to repeat mistakes, he would
urge the Commissioners to avoid discussions about performances and the issues from the
contract until the litigation could be resolved.

Commissioner Jung discussed tracking data and asked about automatic aid
to the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD). She wondered if she could get a report on
that data as well. Interim Chief Cochran stated he could get data from when they were
consolidated in the past. Commissioner Jung stated she believed that information needed
to be part of the decision making process as well.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 5



Commissioner Hartung asked the Interim Chief if they might be better off
to establish an escrow account and employ a third party to manage reimbursement
requests. He questioned if that would satisfy Reno’s side of the table. He understood the
City Council would have to decide but that way it would take the entities out of the loop.
He noted there needed to be prearranged ground rules. Interim Chief Cochran stated if the
entities decided to establish an escrow account, that would cause different negotiation
points, such as how much money would be put into it, how it would be maintained, and
who would draw out the funds. If they decided to do a grace period as he mentioned
earlier and found they needed an escrow account, the discussions regarding who was in
what area and how many times, might show it was close enough to call it a wash. He
suggested they determine if there were any issues and work toward solutionslike that.
Commissioner Hartung said the only reason he suggested an escrow account was it
sometimes put people at ease because a third party was managing the funds. After 60
days, or so, it could be determined to either keep funding those escrow accounts or
dissolve them. :

Commissioner Hartung stated there must have been some type of
automatic aid agreement prior to the contractual arrangement with the City of Reno and
wondered if that agreement could be reviewed to see what could be gained from the
original language. Interim Chief Cochran stated he anticipated that would be done and
would be one of the factors they would consider during negotiations. Commissioner
Hartung asked about NFPA 1710 and if it was mandatory or a standard to have 4-man
crews. Interim Chief Cochran replied it' was a standard, but not mandatory.
Commissioner Hartung wondered if the Interim Chief agreed that 4-man crews were
always needed. Interim Chief Cochran -responded he did believe that 4-man crews were
needed, but thought 5-man crews were better than 4-man crews and so on. Commissioner
Hartung stated Reno had 2-man rescue teams. Interim Chief Cochran confirmed those
were for medical responses. He stated a 2-man crew rescue would never respond first to a
fire because they carried no wateér. Commissioner Hartung stated his point was that
rescue teams responded to'medical incidents. He said Spanish Springs had an automatic
aid agreement with the City of Sparks and it worked seamlessly every day. Interim Chief
Cochran stated the SB 185 agreement that was being negotiated was specifically directed
at fire responses -and that was what they were working towards.

A Andrew Clinger, City of Reno Manager, stated the automatic aid
agreement with the City of Sparks was not really comparable because the City of Reno
was part owner in the fire station with the City of Sparks. He felt that agreement was not
one to model other agreements on because it was based on unique circumstances.

Jenny Brekhus, Reno City Councilwoman, stated there were comments
made about lock-boxing as a part of the City of Reno’s General Fund for fire operations.
She said the tradition of funding fire services had urban components from the beginning.
She said there were stories about the great fires in downtown Reno when the population
in the unincorporated County was comparatively small. She stated as the population grew
the unincorporated County did not stand up fire departments to the degree that Reno did.
Cities and counties had certain bases, foundations and tax structures and when counties

PAGE 6 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



decided to get into the municipal land development pattemns and services; they had to
search for other resources. As the analysis was done to determine where Reno was
required to serve automatic aid, she wondered how much focus would be given to
undeveloped land areas. She thought we were in a growing boom. She was mostly
concerned about the development called Sierra Reflections, because the County decided
to send the sewer treatment lines to 938 units. She asked Interim Chief Cochran if he had
looked at that to see if that would be an automatic aid service area.

Interim Chief Cochran stated they had been headed in that direction before
SB 185 passed, but the SB 185 mandate was to respond to all fires; structure and brush.
So the buildout would enhance the exposure, but it would not change the automatic aid
response because it was based on the closest engine to wherever a fire was in‘the service
areas. Councilmember Brekhus asked if Reno was closest to the Sicrra Reflections
development. Interim Chief Cochran stated depending on how the roads were built,
Station 12 might be closest. Councilmember Brekhus said so under'SB 185 Reno could
be closest before Damonte Ranch which she thought that would be leap-frog sprawl
development. She said that was her biggest concern about SB 185.

Neoma Jardon, Reno City Councilmember; asked why the City of Sparks
was not present at this meeting. She said the minutes from the last joint meeting indicated
staff would seck feedback from the City of Sparks durmg the process with regard to their
automatic aid agreement and financial statistics and that was to specifically provide a
framework. She understood the demographics could be different but she thought a
renewal of existing strengths and weaknesses in their existing automatic aid agreement
might aid their efforts. Interim Chief Cochran said they sought and received a copy of
their agreement. He said they were reviewing that agreement as part of the negotiations to
see what worked and what was not working to model their agreement with TMFPD after.
Based on his reading of the agreement, he was not involved in the negotiations so he did
not want to say what their/goal was but after looking at their agreement, it was not
necessarily modeled on the mandate of SB 185. He said he thought their agreement also
included the EMS response.. Councilmember Jardon stated she could understand the
factors in the automatic aid agreement may be quite different due to the law that was just
passed, but she was:specifically interested in looking at how one agency responded to the
other and where the differences were. Interim Chief Cochran stated they had a
reimbursement mechanism built in and it was his understanding that they had not utilized
it in either direction. He said they had that mechanism along with a rate schedule, but
they did not have call statistics. Councilmember Jardon stated that was what she was
most interested in. She thought in anticipation of SB 185 passing, they had decided to
invite everyone and if they chose to not participate that was their choice. What she
thought she heard today was that Sparks had not been invited. Interim Chief Cochran
stated he believed that discussion happened, but in terms of a motion and direction to
staff he did not believe that happened.

Commissioner Lucey said the closest stations to the Sierra Reflections

development were TMFPD stations. He said there were a number of TMFPD stations that
would reach a call before Reno Station 12 would be called.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 7



Charles Moore, TMFPD Fire Chief, stated he was tasked with discussing
the major components of automatic aid, the costs, the geographic areas to be covered and
a timeline for implementation. He said there were automatic aid agreements in place prior
to the contract for service Reno had with the TMFPD 12 years ago. He noted that until
July 1, 2012 there was an automatic aid agreement with Sierra Fire Protection District
(SFPD) and the City of Reno, particularly for the area of Boomtown, but those
agreements were cancelled. He said that SB 185 set forth the ceiling for structure and
brush fires and nothing more. Although, nothing in the bill prohibited the Council or the
Board from considering going beyond that, they were required to respond with the closest
unit to structure and brush fires. He asked their Geographical Information /System
Department (GISD) to conduct some assumptions and illustrate how to go. about the
process. He reviewed a map depicting a layout of the areas around Station 11 and Station
35. He said the TMFPD Station 35 would be the closest to areas in the City and Reno’s
Station 11 was closest to its jurisdiction. He showed areas where firétrucks leaving their
respective stations at the same time would meet. He noted . the colors on the map
illustrated an eight-minute response area. He stated there might be some fire stations
closer to a property; however, they might not get there faster because of the way the road
was networked. It seemed logical to him to use time as the benchmark.

Chief Moore reviewed a slide depicting Stations 6 and 37 in Hidden
Valley. Engine 37 would be able to service Reno -and Engine 6 might be closer to
portions of the TMFPD jurisdiction. He next’ rev1ewed the slide showing Stations 9 and
13. He said Station 13 was in Stead and Engme 9 was located by the Stead Airport. He
said Engine 9 could also help them in the Lemmon Valley area and the TMFPD could
help Reno in a substantial way-in lower Stead and up and down the Highway 395
corridor. The methodology would be to look at each and every one of their stations to
determine if the TMFPD could get to Reno faster or if Reno could get to the TMFPD
jurisdiction faster. Once those areas were identified they would move on to the next
process, which was called a Unit,Resource Management (URM), formerly referred to as a
Fire Response Zone. They would draw a line around the areas where the TMFPD would
respond for Rerio and where Reno would respond for the TMFPD and then build an
address database for the d1spatchers He said when there was a structure fire reported and
Reno was on-one side and the TMFPD was on the other side, the dispatchers would
“clone” the-call.

Chief Moore stated SB 185 did not indicate there were areas of exclusion
and the closest engine must respond regardless of what was negotiated and the process of
dispatching would have to be built manually. He talked about the Automatic Vehicle
Locators (AVL) and getting dispatch to a point where that would become a simple
process. He displayed a screen shot from his mobile data terminal (MDT) that allowed
him and the dispatchers to see the position of every firetruck and every police vehicle
even as they were moving. He showed an example of Engine 13 outside of its Station,
Engine 9 in quarters, Engine 10 in quarters and Engine 15 out on a call. He said one of
the problems with the manual system was what if the TMFPD’s Engine 13 was out on a
call and there happened to be a structure fire very near that station. The AVL would

PAGE 8 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



allow the dispatcher to send the closest fire engines to whatever emergency there was. He
said in fact the jurisdictional boundaries would drop and the dispatcher only would need
to see what the CAD software recommended and simply dispatch the proper resource. He
noted it would take about three to four weeks to build the GIS maps, another 3 weeks to
build the URM and a couple weeks to test the system. He said it was not going to be
difficult but it would be a little heavy for staff to get it all done and make sure it worked.

Chief Moore it seemed most costs were already embedded into the budget
and the firefighters would be paid whether or not they were responding to a call or if they
were in quarters. There could be some other costs with damage to equipment and he
agreed with Interim Chief Cochran to see what the experience would be after a year. He
said October 1st would come quickly and he would like to have the system s set up and
running and measure the costs component later.

Mayor Schieve asked what Chief Moore thought the AVL would cost.
Chief Moore said we would not know if that software was already embedded within the
Tiburon upgrade or if we would have to buy additional models.. Mayor Schieve asked
how long that software had been around. Chief Moore said. Tiburon had been used by
both agencies for a number of years and just within the last few months it had been
upgraded. Mayor Schieve said from the research she did, most entities were using it and
she could not imagine there was anyone on the Board that would disagree that the AVL
would be extremely beneficial. Chief Moore concurred and said it would also allow the
Board and Council the ability to add cardiac arrest and other types of calls. He said that
was really the gold standard in serving the citizens. Mayor Schieve wondered if that had
ever been proposed in the past. Chief - Moore stated it was discussed at the Committee
level when Tiburon was being discussed, but it was decided not to opt for that. He said
100 percent of the TMFPD Engines were equipped with GPS that were tied to their
MDTs, which always sent a signal to dispatch. He said he left his MDT on all the time.
Mayor Schieve said it seemed to be such a small thing to implement to save a lot of lives.

David Bobzien, City of Reno Councilmember, thanked Chief Moore for
presenting the maps; however, he did not understand how the automatic aid agreement
would progress in terms of how it was built out from those maps. He asked Chief Moore
if he would build:all the street addresses into dispatch so we would know who would roll
where. He said.'SB 185 contained language to be specific in the agreement about
geography and he wondered if the maps were for the areas needed for the automatic aid
agreement or were there other areas to focus on. Chief Moore stated the maps he
presented were only an example. Councilmember Bobzien said it was certainly helpful to
have the maps laid out. He asked if the response time of eight minutes was in the middle
of the night or 8:00 p.m. on a Friday evening. Chief Moore stated he picked eight minutes
simply because they wanted to get to 90 percent of their calls within eight minutes. He
said some of those areas, particularly in Lemmon Valley, Engine 9 might need 10 or 12
minutes because it was a little more rural. He said eight minutes was picked arbitrarily so
they could get a time delta between the time at the station to the time of arrival.
Councilmember Bobzien stated he was not trying to pick apart the eight-minute time

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 9



itself, but wondered about traffic at different times of the day. Chief Moore responded
they factored in speed limits, but did not factor in traffic or time of day.

Councilmember Bobzien said when he looked at the maps he wondered
about some of the other areas such as Lemmon Valley to the east and he assumed that
was coverage that was provided by the volunteers. He asked if we needed to be looking at
what the Reno response time would be to some of those areas that were further out. Chief
Moore stated there were a number of data points that would fall into that category and
certainly Reno might have to respond on farther road miles, but TMFPD might have to
respond more frequently.

Naomi Duerr, Reno City Councilmember, stated her focus was on dispatch
and she wondered how that worked. Chief Moore stated Reno and TMFPD were on the
same CAD system. He stated Sparks would be the last municipality to get the Tiburon
upgrade. Councilmember Duerr asked when the entities parted; was dispatch also
separated. Chief Moore said that was correct. Councilmember Duerr .said we still have
the same radio-band and Tiburon system, but she wondered if there was a systemic
problem with the agreement because it came up over and over that one of the challenges
was that we were on different systems and it was hard ‘to dlspatch the closest trucks. She
wondered if we called for automatic aid on the radios. Chief Moore stated the dispatcher
would see on the screen when the City could: provide aid to us, and when we could
provide aid to the City. Councilmember Duerr asked if the MDT was in everyone’s
vehicle or just his. Chief Moore said it was .in every truck and engine as well as all the
chiefs’ and deputies’ vehicles. Councilmember Duerr asked if that was just for TMFPD
trucks. Chief Moore said no, but he thought'Reno had this because he could see Reno
Engines, but he did not know if the City equipped 100 percent of their equipment, but he
knew there was the capability. Interim Chief Cochran stated Reno had a similar system
but it was not in all their apparatus. He said the budget was augmented and they were in
the process of purchasing thiem in the future. Councilmember Duerr said Chief Moore
said he could see police and she. asked if Reno could see police. Interim Chief Cochran
said he believed Reno could.

Councilmember Brekhus said looking at the map where Station 9 and
Station 13 were shown; she said it looked like the TMFPD Station 13 was now the first
responder in. that area for fires. She said Amazon was located there, which was a
specialized building with a lot of inventory and she wondered how Engine 13 would
respond to those rather complicated structures. Chief Moore said it would respond
exactly like an Engine from Reno would. The job of the first arriving engine was to size-
up the situation. He said if they could get there three or five minutes faster, the arriving
crew would first determine if there was a fire or not. He said they had many reports of
fires that were not bona fide. In a large building they would depend on sprinkler systems
as the number one way the fire would be put out, but size-up was absolutely critical and
to get it early. The crew would ascertain how much of the building was involved, if the
sprinklers were flowing and then the first responder would hit the hydrant and start
pumping the fire protection system or they may take some interior operations if they were
able to do that. He said if it was a bad situation they could let the City know and they

PAGE 10 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



could bring more help. Councilmember Brekhus said she understood that they could start
suppression, but what if the property owner did not see a ladder truck responding and
wanted to opt out of the first responder. She questioned if the owner could say they only
wanted the City to respond. Chief Moore said that did not seem to meet the intent of the
law, but nevertheless, the ladder trucks and full complement would be coming. The law
would just add TMFPD to the fire because they were closer and he thought that was the
only thing that would really change. He said it would work both ways.

Councilmember McKenzie referred back to the map and said he
appreciated the work put in to figure out the eight-minute zones but he saw some areas
within eight minutes of Station 13, but was probably within 5 minutes of Statlon 10.-He
assumed they had to consider all the stations in the area instead of just a couple of them.
Chief Moore said that was correct. Councilmember McKenzie said it concermed him to
use an eight minute standard when another station outside of that covered area could get
there faster. He thought we needed a true run time, not estimations. He said there were
times when Station 35 could get to an area quicker with traffic than Station 11, but there
were other times when Station 11 could get there faster due: to the freeway entrance.
Chief Moore said it would be helpful to not emphasize the eight minute response time but
to look at areas where a station could arrive the soonest. He reiterated that the eight
minute response time was used arbitrarily.

Councilmember McKenzie next discussed the dispatch issue and asked if
Chief Moore could see REMSA from the MDT in his vehicle. Chief Moore said he could
not see REMSA. Councilmember McKenzie asked why we could not see REMSA if they
were part of the response network. Chlef Moore said that was a good point and he
thought that was part of regional d1spatch that would be critical to have on the long-term
so everyone could see everyone.

Mayor Schieve said she was curious if both Chiefs worked on the mapping
together. Chief Moore said no;:but he discussed the methodology with Interim Chief
Cochran. He explained he. simply asked his GIS Department to create a map with the
following assumptions: show the areas where a TMFPD engine would arrive first for the
City and where a City:-engine would arrive first for the TMFPD; and, draw the district’s
and the City’s borders. He noted the mapping was just intended to be an illustration, but it
showed the Board and Council how the URMs would be built. He noted when they got
into_it deeper they would use this methodology to figure out which addresses should
reside within the automatic aid zone. Mayor Schieve said she imagined the Chiefs were
on the same page and working on the plans. Interim Chief Cochran said Chief Moore
identified an area that needed to be discussed along with the methodology, the data
points, and the time and distance for response. He agreed with putting an engine on the
road to factually determine the response time and the eight minute response zone did not
necessarily define who was closest; it was a tool for the negotiating table but it was not
the end point.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 11



Commissioner Jung stated for the record that the franchise agreement with
REMSA required them to provide AVL locations when they reached the CAD
connections.

Commissioner Lucey said he did a little research on NFPA but did not
know if that allowed the use of two in, one out, when there were life threatening issues
happening. Chief Moore stated when there was bona fide information that someone was
trapped inside a structure they could enter with three people. He said there had been an
incident where that was the case and they entered with three, rescued the individual and
proceeded to extinguish the rest of the fire. He said there was an additional benefit with
the 3-man crew because they used paramedlcs who could deliver an effective drug to
reduce the carbon monoxide in a person’s blood. E ,

Commissioner Lucey asked if all commercial buildings within the City of
Sparks over 10,000 square feet required fire suppression systems. Chief Moore said yes,
which happened with the latest Code update about a year ago. Commissioner Lucey
asked how extensive the fire suppression systems were. Chief Mooré said they had to be
engineered and that was based on what was in the building. If the building contained high
fire material, the density of the sprinkler heads would be englneered to increase the
amount of water.

Commissioner Lucey asked Interim Chief Cochran if Station 9 and Station
10 had ladder trucks. Interim Chief Cochran stated they did not, but Station 1 did.
Commissioner Lucey said if they were in: need of a ladder truck from the stations in the
North Valleys they would have to call fStiatlon 1. Interim Chief Cochran said a first alarm
response included a ladder truck regardless of where it was. He said Station 1 or Station 3
sent three engines, a truck and a rescue unit, so a six-man crew would be dispatched.

Mayor Schieve said if AVL was required in the REMSA franchise
agreement, why was it not being implemented. Jim Gubbels, President of REMSA, said
the current re-instated franchise agreement provided for a CAD-to-CAD linkage and to
do AVL with the 9-1-1 centers. REMSA’s dispatch center was already upgraded and they
were waiting for the upgrade for Tiburon at the other two centers to be able to do it. Reno
was the closest to being completed right now and once that was completed, they could go
ahead and initiate the CAD-to-CAD linkage, which would connect the dispatchers and
then they could move with the AVL component at the same time. When Sparks came on
board, they could take the same interface (Tiburon) and do a replicate interconnect to the
City of Sparks. Mayor Schieve confirmed REMSA was with Tiburon and Mr. Gubbels
replied they were on Tri-Tech, who purchased Tiburon. Mayor Schieve asked if they
would both be able to read one another. Mr. Gubbels stated that was correct. Mayor
Schieve asked how long ago that was put in the contract. Mr. Gubbels said July 1, 2014
and at that time, Reno’s new CAD was supposed to be up, but it took longer to get the
new Tiburon CAD installed.

Mayor Schieve asked Chief Moore if the City of Reno residents paid a tax
to the County for dispatch. Chief Moore said they did not. The City paid for their

PAGE 12 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



dispatch component and he thought nothing came from Reno to TMFPD, but TMFPD
paid the Sheriff and the Sheriff paid the City of Reno.

Councilmember McKenzie stated he had questions regarding fire
protection taxes that a County resident paid versus what a Reno resident paid. He
believed as a City resident, he would make the same payment for Sheriff coverage,
dispatch coverage, district attorney coverage and for any other type of coverage that was
provided to the unincorporated County, because zero dollars of that base tax went to the
City. Chief Moore said he did not think so. Councilmember McKenzie said the tax tables
showed he was correct and every person in the City of Reno paid the same taxes to the
County as every other person who lived in the unincorporated area for TMFPD & SFPD
protection. A J

Andrew Clinger, City Manager, said Councilmember McKenzie was
correct. He said the tax base for the County applied to all the County residents, both
unincorporated and incorporated and he thought that was Councilmember McKenzie’s
point. He said if you were a City resident you would also pay.the basic operating tax for
the County. He noted the exception was the fire tax, which only applied to the Districts
which were located outside the incorporated areas of the City.

Commissioner Berkbigler said she concurred; however, that had nothing
to do with the subject on today’s agenda, which was how to provide the best overall
safety to the citizens. She wanted to point out that Chief Moore prepared the maps as a
diagram so the Council and Board could get an idea of the areas. The maps were not set
in stone; they were only examples of how. it could go. The truth was it could go the
opposite direction; it would depend on what the two Chiefs came up with and brought
back to the Board. She stated the Commissioners did not just represent the
unincorporated County they also represented the City of Reno and Sparks residents. She
and the Mayor concurred they neéded to turn this over to the safety specialists and let
them tell the Board and Council what they needed. She said her main concern was about
dispatch and if they had toexpend extra dollars to make sure dispatch was up and running
quickly, there needed.to be a comprehensive and clear automatic agreement.

Councilmember Bobzien said the reimbursement component was part of
the new law and. it was important to look at it closely. He noted the maps were a work in
progress’ and he did not know if this needed to be as complicated as establishing an
escrow account, but he wanted to make sure it was clear, transparent, understandable and
workable. Interim Chief Cochran said Councilmember Bobzien identified a lot of the
issues ‘they needed to look at and his suggestion earlier about a grace period was more
intended as something to discuss and not necessarily to be a concrete part of the
negotiated automatic aid arrangement. He said they could model the Sparks/TMFPD
agreement whereby that was already built in. He thought we needed to get the Chiefs and
the City and County Managers involved to make sure the arrangements were workable.
We don’t want to get down the road and find out it wasn’t working.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 13



Mr. Clinger stated staff for the City of Reno was looking to the Council
for any changes, deletions or corrections to the principles in the agreement moving
forward. Interim Chief Cochran said that was an excellent point, not trying to reach an
agreement here in Chambers, but to direct staff.

Commissioner Berkbigler asked Chief Moore what the mutual aid
payment agreement was with the City of Sparks. Chief Moore stated they had not really
exchanged any money. In the mutual aid agreement they had a 12-hour threshold, so if
there was an extraordinary operational period for a large fire that Sparks would be
reimbursed for, they would be reimbursed for any extra hours until the incident was
concluded. , e

Neoma Jardon, City of Reno Councilwoman, discussed the importance of
including Sparks’ Chief and Sparks’ Council at future joint meetings and she did not
believe it was anyone’s intent to not include them in the meeting today. She did not think
there was any value looking back, particularly with things that were not statistical in
nature. She said they needed statistics, facts and history, and not emotional history.

Councilmember Duerr stated she wanted to know how quickly the AVLs
could get done and what the cost would be. She would like to come to the next meeting
and hear the costs to equip all the vehicles, and where that money would come from. She
thought we needed to be moving forward with $pecific objectives and they would have
some concrete answers and not so many questions. She concurred Sparks was not left out
of the legislation and they needed to be part of the future meetings. She thought if the
automatic aid agreement with Sparks-could be improved upon during this process, it
should be done with all entities in the room.

Councilmember Brekhus reiterated her concerns with timing development
in the region with fire services in mind. She said she wanted to make sure Reno residents
were receiving the same level of service from the TMFPD that the Reno Fire Department
gave. She stated she was not too concerned about the Sparks issue. She said they did not
have this confliot because their boundary issues had not been that distinctive.

~Councilmember McKenzie moved to direct staff to proceed with the
negotiating ‘points presented by Interim Chief Cochran for the development of an
automatic-aid agreement and that we reach out to Sparks elected officials and ask them to
participate 'going. Councilmember Duerr seconded the motion.

Councilmember Bobzien stated he thought as the community was taking
off again in terms of the economy and growth, there needed to be a lot of discussion and
consideration of the geography and that it was not just the three maps presented, but the
entire region.

Mayor Schieve added other entities like North Lake Tahoe should be

included in the motion. Councilmember McKenzie stated he did not think we had
anything close to North Lake Tahoe, but he believed that the bill addressed every fire

PAGE 14 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



agency within the County so he said involving every fire agency in these negotiations
was important. Chair Berkbigler stated she doubted the City of Reno had anything near
North Lake Tahoe to respond but that was not the point of SB 185. The point of SB 185
was that every fire department in Washoe County be included, so she thought if we were
going to ask all fire departments to participate, North Lake Tahoe should be included.
Councilmember McKenzie agreed to amend his motion.

In response to the call for public comment, Cliff Lowe stated SB 185
brought everyone together now but and would sunset in 2017. He mnoted the
unincorporated County had approximately 25 percent of the population, Reno had 50
percent and Sparks had 25 percent. He said the reason for this meeting was not because
of automatic aid, but was about consolidation and regionalization. He said" the feason
Sparks had not come to the meetings was because the County did not want
regionalization with Sparks and he was not sure Reno wanted it. He asked if the Reno
City Council would embrace the provisions of SB 185 without ?reglonahzatlon and
consolidation. He also asked if Reno would go beyond the provisions of SB 185 or be
dragged kicking and screaming to fulfill SB 185’s provisions., As the unincorporated area
had recognized, getting an apparatus to the scene quickly was critical. Would Reno
accept that and would they accept there might be times an apparatus that’s not in their
jurisdiction could get there faster. If Reno could not embrace that, then they would be
doing their constituents a disservice. He asked the Council and Board to take the time to
make it happen. ;

Stephen Perez stated the Leglslature put a target on the wall and everyone
was to throw a dart at it until they came.up with a plan that would work for both
jurisdictions. He said it seemed like the number one priority was being reimbursed, but it
appeared it could not be calculated. He noted in 35 years of being in fire service, the
greatest innovation he experienced was paramedics. If you ask someone lying on the
floor who had a heart attack if they wanted four people who were paramedics who could
save their life, or four ﬁreﬁghter§ they would tell you they wanted the paramedics. They
did not care how many men were on an Engine or where it came from; they just wanted
their life saved.. He was really upset that EMS calls were not part of automatic aid,
because he thoyght that was what automatic aid was. Saving lives was what people
expected of a.fire.départment. The Council’s direction to the Chiefs was to figure out a
way to put-an additional piece of equipment on a fire scene a couple of minutes faster,
which would only be about 10 percent of the calls. What happened to the other 90 percent
of people who could possibly be dying? The rigs and manpower were paid for, but it was
the cost of doing business of having a fire department. It did not cost anyone anymore
other than a little bit of gas to put that piece of equipment on the road to save a life or get
it to the fire quicker.

Mike Pilcher, Reno Fire Department, stated he wanted to clarify the
percentage of calls. He said 100 percent of their calls could be considered as EMS
because people were who and what they protected all of the time. Rescues from ponds, or
being cut out of vehicles, or brought out of burning buildings, they all required safety for
people. They had over 40,000 calls a year and what they did was one of the most

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 15



dangerous professions there was. He said firefighter safety should be paramount and
following standards would ensure that. He said we were a nation of standards, whether
that was for aviation, medicine, transportation, or buildings. He said the fire stations were
built to NFPA standards, their equipment met standards, the tools they used and the fire
engines had to be up to NFPA standards. He could not believe that anyone would
consider using sub-standards when referring to manpower. There was case law that
NFPA 1710 could be introduced for civil lability, so he would not discount the
importance of standards in this Country. He said commercial and residential build-out
was not perfect, due to topography challenges such as ravines, slopes, rivers, and
mountains. He noted annexation and growth had always caused pockets of County here,
and pockets of City there. Those issues were addressed 20 years ago and ‘as things
happened and bumped up against other jurisdictions, the question was, what should we
do? We could not change Washoe County boundary lines, but as City limits and
Jurisdictions from fire protection districts grew, they could change the fire station district
responses. He noted this had been done before and could be done again, but safety of the
firefighters should be paramount.

Tom Dunn, Vice President Reno Firefighters'Association, stated there was
a lot of talk about NFPA 1710 and he read a portion of the definition. He noted the
purpose of the standard was to specify the minimum criteria addressing the effectiveness
and efficiency of the career public fire suppression ‘operations, EMS and special
operations delivery in protecting the citizens of a jurisdiction and the occupational safety
and health of the fire department employees. Section 5.23 stated engine companies shall
be staffed with a minimum of four on-duty personnel and truck companies shall be
staffed with a minimum of four on-duty personnel. In jurisdictions with tactical hazards,
high-hazard occupancies, high-incident frequencies, geographical restrictions or other
pertinent factors identified by the authority having jurisdiction, they should be staffed
with a minimum of five on-duty personnel. When you look at the risks in our community,
whether that was high-rise buildings, high-rise residential, universities, schools, nursing
homes, hospitals, or airports, there was a minimum standard to do business for the safety
and occupational health of the firefighters and the public. He further added, Section 5.2
talked about high-median and low-hazard occupancies. Firefighters who responded to
high-median or/low-hazard occupancies that presented hazards greater than the low
hazard described in' 5.24.22 shall deploy additional resources. The argument about 4-
person staffing or 3-person staffing was based on a standard and that standard had been
maintained by Reno since 1977 and that was based on the risks in the community, the
risks of the job and more importantly the hazards this fire department protected every
day.

On the call for the vote for the Reno City Council, the vote was 5-0 with
Councilmember Brekhus and Councilmember Delgado absent.

Commissioner Lucey asked Chief Moore if he was in agreement with the
negotiating points submitted by Interim Chief Cochran. Chief Moore responded he was.

PAGE 16 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung,
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Herman absent, it was ordered that in
addition to the questions she asked of both Chiefs regarding data, she moved to direct
staff to begin to work to develop the components of the automatic aid agreement.

15-093F AGENDA ITEM 6 Presentation (by Washoe County Sheriff’s Office),
discussion and possible direction to staff regarding regional dispatch.

John Spencer, Washoe County Undersheriff, stated there was an
association between the fire departments and law enforcement, and the Washoe County
Sheriff’s Office was the regional dispatch provider for the Truckee Meadows  Fire
Protection District (TMFPD), Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD), Gerlach Volunteers
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (NLTFPD), and the ambulance on the Pyramid
Lake Tribal. Undersheriff Spencer stated the purpose of their involvement was to ensure
the improvement of the dispatch situation, which was co-located in the same room and
using the same equipment benefited them. He said they were still two separate entities
that once brought together would benefit the community.

Undersheriff Spencer mentioned the City of Reno and the County were in
the testing process with the Tiburon upgrade, which had caused failures forcing them to
work with manual cards. He felt thankful they had started on the manual card system, and
how they were always prepared for technical issues. He mentioned automatic aid
situations between NLTFPD and North Tahoe in California, and between the TMFPD
and the Sparks Fire Department. He felt that they were fully capable of working through
whatever was necessary in providing automatic aid. He mentioned the technology
associated with the Automatic Vehicle Locate system and once installed in all fire
apparatuses and law enforcement vehicles would benefit the community and satisfy SB
185, which focused on ensuring the quickest fire response to the scene. He stated quick
responses all started with thereceipt and dispatch of the service.

Undersheriff Spencer stated he appeared before the Board regarding the
audit involving a.1990 agreement, which referred to trade between the City of Reno and
Washoe County for. crime lab services. He mentioned the Sheriff’s Office was given six
months by the Board to work towards a regionalized dispatch concept. He said they had
meetings with the City of Reno Director of Finance and Administration, Robert Chisel,
and the City:of Reno Human Resources Director, Kelly Leerman, to determine employee
structure. Undersheriff Spencer mentioned the audit listed various entities in South
Carolina, California and Washington, which did similar things they could leamn from. He
stated 'some of those entities had private ambulance franchises operating in their public
safety system, which was similar to our region with the Regional Emergency Medical
Services Authority (REMSA) component.

Undersheriff Spencer stated automatic aid with the Sparks Fire
Department was automatically programmed into certain geographic areas, and units were
dispatched simultaneously without delay. He stated he wanted to assure the Board that
the Sheriff’s Office was willing to work with anyone involved.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 17



Chair Berkbigler thanked Undersheriff Spencer for his report and asked
him about the regionalization timeframe. Undersheriff Spencer stated after having
conversations with Director Chisel, they were probably six weeks out before they could
come back before the Board. He mentioned Councilmember Duerr asked about issues
related to the costs involved for AVL, and explained he did not know which apparatuses
did or did not have it. He stated they needed to obtain more information to be able to
report what the projected cost and timeline would be. He explained the current
technology in the Sheriff’s Department patrol cars required them to keep the vehicle idle
for a long time so the system would not go off since it took a while for the system to
come back on.

Chair Berkbigler asked John Slaughter, County Manager, to ¢larify how
the TMFPD received its funding for dispatch services. Manager Slaughter stated his
understanding of the question was whether the TMFPD was being stibsidized by County
and City residents through property taxes. He stated the County’s/base tax rate was $1.39
per $1,000 of assessed value, and the TMFPD was $0.54 per $1,000. TMFPD had various
agreements with the Sheriff’s Office for dispatch, and on an annual basis was paying
close to $560,000 from their revenue to the Sheriff’s Office for dispatch services. He
concluded there was no additional subsidization from County and City residents to
residents in the TMFPD jurisdiction. ’

Mayor Schieve asked Director Chisel to clarify the steps for
regionalization of dispatch services. Director. Chisel mentioned how the Sheriff’s Office
and the City of Reno had discussions-in ‘the past regarding how dispatch should be
operated. He stated several years ago the City of Reno, City of Sparks and Washoe
County had a Shared Services: Subcommittee that directed the parties to consolidate
dispatch; however, it was decided at the time to seek a co-location. He provided a
historical account of how the City of Reno, at one time, did all the dispatch for the region
except for the City of Sparks, and how Washoe County handled the dispatch for Incline
Village. Over the years the dispatch service evolved to where Washoe County provided
dispatch services for various surrounding areas, and the City of Reno only provided
dispatch services for the City of Reno, the University of Nevada Reno and the Truckee
Meadows Commumty College. He stated the dispatch service for the City of Reno and
Washoe County were currently co-located and using the same equipment. Director Chisel
stated the two biggest hurdles were how we would handle governance and personnel for
consolidation of dispatch services. He indicated the technology portion was the easy part
since'we were already there and working on it.

Councilmember Duerr asked what the hang up was on governance and
personnel decisions. Director Chisel mentioned the issue for personnel was the difference
with the pay scale, benefits and longevity. He explained how health insurance benefits
were fairly comparable. He stated the City of Reno was six dispatchers short, and
emphasized how difficult it was to recruit, retain and train dispatchers. He mentioned the
dispatcher position was not a position they wanted to take lightly and they wanted to

PAGE 18 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



ensure they were well taken care of as they were an important and integral part of public
safety.

Councilmember Duerr asked Director Chisel if there was joint training for
the City of Reno and Washoe County dispatchers, which he replied there was on-the-job
training for the dispatchers in the same facility. Councilmember Duerr indicated through
her own experience, related to joint arrangement training, she wanted to challenge
Director Chisel and others involved to think about how to train the dispatchers as a pool
of employees. Director Chisel replied he would hesitate for the dispatch service to,go into
that direction due to different and complex dispatch protocols between the entities. He
stated dispatching for Reno fire would be slightly different than dispatching ,for- the
TMFPD. He said it was very similar but it could put the dispatchers in a dlfﬁcult position,
and he questioned how the employees’ abilities would be rated. He stated it would be
better to identify what the cost and impact would be. There had been a number of
unfortunate times where the City of Reno had to call upon the County to take over
dispatch calls and vice versa. He said the dispatchers were more than capable to do cross
dispatching, but it was more of an individual basis as to what their abilities were. He
provided an example of whether a dispatcher was able to dispatch for the Reno Police
Department on a busy Friday afternoon when he or she was more used to dispatching for
the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District where it was quieter.

Councilmember Jardon asked where the City of Sparks dispatchers were
located. Director Chisel replied the City of Sparks had a separate dispatch center, and
they were in the process of upgrading their, CAD system with Tiburon, which was
expected to be completed in mid-July. Councilmember Jardon stated she heard having an
off-site dispatch service was a benefit for redundancy purposes. Director Chisel indicated
the City of Sparks dispatch service ' would be the backup facility should the City of Reno
and Washoe County have to evacuate their current facility, and vice versa.

Councihnelflbér Jardon asked Undersheriff Spencer to clarify what he
meant regarding failures: during the testing of the Tiburon. Undersheriff Spencer
explained it was'a techmcal failure with the Tiburon upgrade of the CAD system.

. Coun‘é"ilmember McKenzie stated he had personal experience with
dispatchers- and believed dispatchers were the last hurdle. He thought the dispatchers
were ready to go, and all they needed was to be in a position to succeed. He said the
committee ‘did not have to look outside the State for examples of efficient regional
dispatch services, and mentioned how he was involved in the regionalization of the Elko
County Dispatch System. He felt regionalization was not rocket science, and was more
effected by politics

Mayor Schieve asked Undersheriff Spencer to clarify why it was so
important to consolidate dispatch. Undersherift Spencer gave the example of people in
the community who believed they lived in an unincorporated area of the County, and
contacted dispatch to get a hold of a County fire engine or deputy. Due to the call taking
system currently in place, the person may believe he or she was speaking to someone

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 19



within the County but was actually speaking to a City of Reno employee. When the calls
got transferred around there was potential for delays as to how the call would be handled,
which could delay response times of the appropriate apparatus.

Mayor Schieve asked Suzy Rogers, Assistant Manager Reno Emergency
Communications, how often delays happened with dispatch. Ms. Rogers provided an
example of how the City of Reno dispatch service answered all 9-1-1 calls for the
County, and the first thing a dispatcher would ask was what the person’s address was;
however, after determining the person’s location, the caller would be transferred to the
appropriate entity. If it was a major emergency or a medical call, based on the location,
the dispatcher would enter the fire call, and at the same time contact REMSA - for
emergency medical services. She stated a dispatcher would enter information ‘into the
CAD system, and based on location and type of call, the CAD system would route the
call to the radio dispatcher responsible for the area or agency at that time. She said while
REMSA was verifying the caller’s address a fire engine would be on‘its way to the scene.

Mayor Schieve believed her question was not answered, and asked why
people who had studied our dispatch system stated it was deadly. Ms. Rogers stated she
did not know where the delays would be within the City of Reno. She gave examples of
possible reasons a delay would occur; such as, the dispatcher not being able to verify the
location or the police would already be handling other issues. She clarified the delay
issue may be due to the resource availability rather than with a dispatcher entering the
call. Mayor Schieve asked Ms. Rogers how tegional dispatch would work for her. Ms.
Rogers stated she was going on 26 years with the City of Reno, and explained when she
started, the dispatch center was consolidated. She said it worked very efficiently, the
dispatchers could speak to each other directly, and if she needed backup she was able to
rely on the person sitting next-to her as he or she would have the same training. She said
the dispatchers knew what they needed to get done, and how the teamwork was priceless.

Councilmember Duerr was not content to just accept the report, and
believed since the City Council and County Commissioners were all together they needed
to make use of the time to take action. She made a motion to have staff come back with
specific information to-streamline regionalized dispatch.

/' Chair Berkbigler stated during the Board of County Commissioners
meeting last :week, they had already directed Undersheriff Spencer to obtain and provide
more information, as was requested in the City of Reno’s motion, so the County would
not be making a duplicate motion.

There was no public comment on this item.
15-094F AGENDA ITEM 7 Presentation, discussion and possible direction to

staff regarding consolidation, regionalization and the Blue Ribbon
Committee Report.

PAGE 20 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



Dave Cochran, Reno Fire Department Interim Chief, updated the directive
from the May 26th meeting to continue to pursue regionalization discussions. He stated
he and his staff met with Chief Charles Moore, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
(TMFPD), and his staff to go over specific numbers and dollar figures, which were
presented in a plan at the joint meeting between the City and the County. He wanted the
opportunity to explain the numbers and give the TMFPD an opportunity to ask questions.
He noted the meeting with Chief Moore, which detailed a breakdown of the budget
numbers, occurred on June 4th, and they were able to review the same plan that was
presented at the joint meeting a couple weeks ago. He stated he was waiting for feedback
from Chief Moore.

Chief Moore summarized the findings of the Blue Ribbon Committee
(BRC) regarding consolidation. He mentioned key points which had to be-resolved before
they would be able to move forward. He listed the following points: (1) goyvernance as to
how the fire district would be governed, (2) how were the people going to be represented
and what was the service level going to be, and (3) how would the regionalization be
financed. He felt once they had an agreement, particularly regarding service levels, they
would then be able to move forward. He emphasized there was nothing more important
than to get automatic aid up and running. He said staff was'going to be very busy because
failure was not an option, and they wanted to be ready by the October 1st deadline. He
requested to be unencumbered so they would be able to work on automatic aid for at least
the next 60 days before the Board considered any additional direction to staff to
regionalize the fire departments.

Commissioner Jung concurred with Chief Moore regarding automatic aid.
She stated she wanted both fire chiefs to-focus on the completion of automatic aid. After
the automatic aid project was completed, she requested a report from both sides showing
what would be the best model for regionalization in regards to funding and best practices.
She did not feel comfortable putting the unincorporated County fire district in the position
of inequity right at the beginning.

Mayor Schieve believed the best way to work on regionalization was to
have both parties bring to the table proposals, and then pick apart which items they could
and could not live with or without. She mentioned the County’s issue with the City for
not having'a dedicated fund for fire protection as a point of contention.

Commissioner Hartung stated for true regionalization to occur all parties
must come to the table. He said it was very bothersome that the joint committee did not
know the specific reasons why the fire districts did not renew the regionalization contract
and divided in the first place. He felt the conversation should include funding, service
level, and flexible staffing. He strongly believed the joint committee should have the
conversation, and allow some time to pass after automatic aid was in place to see how it
went before they talked about true regionalization.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 21



Councilmember Bobzien stated he wanted to urge staff to work diligently
on automatic aid due to the time restraint, but also work on other aspects of
regionalization at the same time to ensure compliance with the State prior to the next
legislative session. He felt some issues would require a lot of time due to their
complexity, and he did not want staff to defer on those items.

Councilmember Brekhus believed they should be thinking and promoting
the big ideas such as merging the City and the County. She passionately emphasized how
much time staff on both sides spent preparing and monitoring Interlocal Agreements, and
if this was one body doing the people’s business it would be more efficient.

R W
In response to the call for public comment, Cliff Lowe stated
comprehensive regional coverage was previously mentioned by the City Council during a
past meeting, and there were two pieces required to achieve comprehenswe regional
coverage: 1) mutual aid between entities; and, (2) comprehensive automatic aid. He
believed the reasons for not renewing past agreements should be reviewed.

On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey,
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Herman absent, it was ordered that Chief
Moore use his discretion in creating the timeline for regionalization planning.

15-095F AGENDA ITEM 8 Discussion-and potential direction by each governing
board to its respective staff on possible dates and items for agendas for
future Concurrent meetings’i@lgtihg to fire services.

Chair Berkbigler believed the deadline for a report regarding
regionalization of the fire departments should be left to the City of Reno’s and the
TMFPD’s fire chiefs. Andrew Clinger, Reno City Manager, stated the next regular joint
meeting was scheduled for! Aligust 3rd. Interim Chief Cochran said that was enough time
to be able to provide a report or get further direction. Chief Moore concurred and added
by then they Would be able to have geographical areas identified.

Councilmember Jardon was worried about pushing the regionalization
timeline further out, and asked Tom Garrison, Sparks Fire Department Chief, if he would
work with the other two fire chiefs and the Spark’s Council regarding regionalization
prior to the August 3rd concurrent meeting. She wanted to know what the City of Sparks’
intentions were regarding automatic aid and regionalization. Chief Garrison stated the
City of Sparks had already participated in automatic aid, so it was business as usual.

Manager Clinger stated the rules and procedures for the concurrent
meetings were to have the Mayors and Chair of the Board set the agenda. He said a
meeting was set for tomorrow, and assuming City of Sparks Mayor Gino Martini was
going to be there, they could discuss regionalization with him. Mayor Schieve stated that
she and Chair Berkbigler had already been meeting regularly, and they should continue to

PAGE 22 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



meet at least once a week, which would be beneficial moving forward regarding
regionalization.

Councilmember Jardon wanted to clarify what was going to happen at the
August 3rd meeting, and asked if they could expect to talk about regionalization or only
automatic aid. She did not want the direction here today to only be about automatic aid.
Mayor Schieve replied by stating both automatic aid and regionalization would be
addressed.

There was no public comment or action on this item.
15-096F AGENDA ITEM 9 Commissioners’/Reno City Council and Fire Chief’s
announcements, requests for information, topics for future agendas, and

statements relating to items not on the Agenda. (No' discussion among
Commissioners/Reno City Council will take place on this item).

Commissioner Jung addressed Chief Moore by stating she believed it was
important to know the City of Reno’s annexation policy, and how it would affect the
Truckee Meadow Fire Protection District and their funds in terms of revenue stream loss.

There was no public comment or action on this item.

15-097F AGENDA ITEM 10 Public Comment.

There was no public comment.

JUNE 15, 2015 CONCURRENT PAGE 23



5:23 p.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned
without objection.

MARSHA BERKBIGLER, Chair
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District and Sierra Fire Protection
District

ATTEST:

NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire
Protection District

Minutes Prepared by:
Jaime Dellera, Deputy County Clerk

PAGE 24 CONCURRENT JUNE 15, 2015



TUESDAY

PRESENT:

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

9:00 a.m. JULY 21, 2015

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner
Jeanne Herman, Commissioner
Bob Lucey, Commissioner

Nancy Parent, County Clerk
David Watts-Vial. L.egal Counsel
Charles Moore, Fire Chief

The Board convened at 9:00 a.m. in regular session in the Commission

Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno,
Nevada. Following the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of our Country, the Clerk called
the roll and the Board conducted the following business:

15-0113F

15-0114F

15-0115F

15-0116F

AGENDA ITEM 3 Public Comment.
Cathy Brandhorst spoke of matters of concern to herself.

CONSENT ITEMS 4A THROUGH 4C

4A Approval of minutes from Board of Fire Commissioners (BOFC)
meeting May. 18,2015 and May 26, 2015 and from the BOFC Concurrent
Jung 16, 2015 Meeting.

4B Discussion and possible approval of an Interlocal Agreement
between Washoe County Health District and Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District to provide storage and emergency operation of
Portable Message Boards.

4C Accept [$13,122] grant from Washoe County in support of renovations
and improvements to the Palomino Valley Volunteer Fire Station 229 and
direct Finance to make the necessary budget adjustments.

On the call for public comment,

On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung,

which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the Consent Agenda Items 4A through 4C
be approved. Any and all Resolutions or Interlocal Agreements pertinent to Consent
Agenda Items 4A through 4C are attached hereto and made a part hereof.

JULY 21, 2015

AGENDA ITEM #4
PAGE 1



15-0117F AGENDA ITEM S Fire Chief Report: A). Report and discussion related
to fire district operations. B). Career Statistics’ and Report for June 2015.
C). Volunteer Statistics’ and Report for June 2015.

Chief Moore submitted a map depicting Reciprocal and Wildland
Automatic Aid, which was placed on file with the Clerk. The analysis of the map
determined there were 22,139 structures or tax paying types of properties that were closer
to another jurisdiction than the jurisdiction they were designated to. He stated that the
jurisdiction data from the maps consisted of 11,840 structures in Reno, 1,262 structures in
Sparks and 9,037 structures in the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD)
He stated it would take another month for the data from the maps to be built j in the Unit
Response Management (URM) in Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD). He said Chief Tim
Leighton, Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD), would be working with his counterparts
to build the addresses within CAD for Reno and Sparks. He said the.only issue left was in
regards to cost reimbursement. He thought tracking the automatic aid calls would help
determine what jurisdictions were getting the most calls. In September there would be
joint training and some protocol work so CAD and automatic aid would be ready to go by
October 1st. \

Commissioner Hartung asked if there had been a discussion regarding an
escrow account for reimbursement. Chief Moore stated there had not been discussion, but
he thought it would be a wash and even if there Were any reimbursements they would not
involve large dollars. £

Chair Berkbigler was curious regarding the cost reimbursement issue that
was discussed at the Legislature. She said a representative from Las Vegas stated they
provided automatic aid to the entire valley and there was never a reimbursement process.
She questioned whether Washoe County could use the same process. Chief Moore stated
if the City of Reno desired reimbursement there would be a discussion with Reno Fire
Department Interim Chief Cochran. He thought a starting point for measuring work
would be based on the time spent on fire suppression, which could be analyzed for a year
to see if cost relmbursements were truly an issue.

- Chief Leighton stated there had been an active fire pattern the last month
and, thankfully, it had been extremely wet. There had been an unusual amount of
lightening strikes especially in the North Valleys, but the reaction times were quick and
any fires were quickly extinguished. The largest fire this season was only approximately
five acres. He stated usually by this time of the year the ignition component was about
100, which meant if 100 matches were thrown on the ground it would start 100 fires. The
ignition component was for July 37 in Galena and 18 in Dog Valley. He said the spread
component was extremely low at 11 feet per minute, which was how quickly a fire would
spread. He commented that recently there had been more flood calls than fire calls,
especially in the North Valleys, but that did not mean it would stay that way. He said the
weather pattern predicted more rain along with lightning and thunderstorms so there
could be more fires.

PAGE 2 JULY 21, 2015



There was no public comment or action on this item.

15-0118F AGENDA ITEM 6 Authorize the payment of the workers’ insurance for
the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District to the Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT), for
the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an annual estimated
premium of $1,014,928.

There was no public comment on this item.

On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung,
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be authorized.

15-0119F AGENDA ITEM 7 Approve a Resolution requesting the State of Nevada
transfer to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District the property
located at 16133 Mt. Ranch Road, APN 150-250-45, including all
improvements thereon, for the purpose of fire protection and related safety
services.

The following item was heard solely by the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners.

Chief Moore explained some legislation passed in the last session which
allowed for the transfer of surplus property known as Volunteer Station 382 from the
Nevada Department of Forestry (NDE) to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
(TMFPD). He said the property was basically a barn but it could be used as a storage
facility. He stated because it was a.transfer, if it was no longer used by the TMFPD, the
State of Nevada would have the first right of refusal to reclaim property.

Commissioner' Hartung asked if the NDF decided they needed that
property back, would that create a reversal of property. Chief Moore stated it would not.

Cathy Brandhorst spoke of matters of concern to herself.

On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey,
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be approved. The
Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof.

15-0120F AGENDA ITEM 8 Approve a Resolution of the Sierra Fire Protection
District Board of Fire Commissioners declaring its intent to lease property
at 1105 Longview Drive, Reno, NV APN 081-040-01 to the United States
Bureau of Land Management for a minimum of $1500.00 per month and
to set a public meeting on august 18, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. at which objections
to the lease may be made by the electors of the Sierra Fire Protection
District.

JULY 21, 2015 PAGE 3



The following item was heard solely by the Sierra Fire Protection District
Board of Fire Commissioners.

Chief Moore stated the Peavine volunteers had moved to Lemmon Valley
after the Lemmon Valley volunteers decided to disband. He said the station was very
active and he received a number of compliments from the citizens in the community. He
stated the Peavine volunteer station was surrounded by Reno so there was not a need for a
volunteer component there. He said since the Peavine volunteer fire barn was vacated, the
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) approached him and wanted to lease the facility so
for storage of their brush trucks. He stated if the Board approved the lease, BLM Would
likely lease the property around September. ,

Commissioner Herman complimented Chief Moore for finding a use and
income for the building.

Cathy Brandhorst spoke of matters of concern to herself.

On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner
Herman, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved. The
Resolution for same is attached hereto and made af’part of'the minutes thereof.

15-0121F AGENDA ITEM 9 Dlscussmn and possible approval of the annual
performance evaluation for, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Fire
Chief including (but not-limited to) discussion regarding results, goals,
and objectives, and possible increase in salary.

Commissioner Hartung asked which Board question number six on the
evaluation referred to. Chief Mooreé stated the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
(TMFPD) Board was the only Board he interfaced with. Commissioner Hartung
commented that no one asked him any of the questions on the evaluation but Chief
Moore was doing a ‘great job. Chair Berkbigler stated she thought questions were posed
to a specific group and not the Board. Commissioner Jung stated the Board could give
feedback on the questions if desired.

 » ‘Commissioner Herman remarked she previously stated Chief Moore
deserved araise and she still felt that way.

Chair Berkbigler concurred with Commissioner Hartung and said she
appreciated Chief Moore’s help and advice. She thanked him for bringing forward the
information from his evaluation and stated he deserved a raise.

Commissioner Jung thought it was a great review. She agreed he was
doing a great job and she noticed a difference in the relationship with the Reno Fire
Department since Interim Fire Chief Cochran came on board. One thing she wanted to
point out was that Chief Moore had never presented incorrect data or information. She

PAGE 4 JULY 21, 2015



stated she had no problem with a giving him raise, but she thought it should match the 2
percent provided by the collective bargaining units.

Legal Counsel David Watt-Vial stated he reviewed the contracts for the
two collective bargaining units that were in the TMFPD. Local Union 3895 received a 2
percent increase and the Chief Officers Association received a 3 percent increase as of
July 1, 2015. He stated that Chief Moore’s contract allowed for him to receive up to a 5
percent merit increase in addition to a cost of living increase.

Commissioner Hartung stated given all the issues that Chief Moore faced
and the amount of additional time he had to put in, he thought an increase of 3 percent
was warranted, which matched what the elected officials asked for.

Commissioner Jung stated she was fine with a 3 percent increase and it
was unfortunate the bargaining units had already agreed to their increases because she
would have given them all a 3 percent increase.

Cathy Brandhorst spoke of matters of concern to herself.

On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey,
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be approved and to
increase Chief Moore’s salary by 3 percent.

15-0122F AGENDA ITEM 10 Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements,
requests for information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating
to items not on the Agenda. (No discussion among Commissioners will
take place on this.item).Announcements/Reports.

David Watts-Vial stated Assembly Bill 333 (AB333) was passed by the
Legislature, which provided a process for the consolidation of fire districts in counties
that had less than 700,000 residents. The process required the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) to adopt a Resolution proposing consolidation and to have a
hearing to determine whether or not consolidation was feasible and in the best interest of
the County. If it 'was found to be feasible and in best interest of the County, the Board
would adopt an Ordinance through a process that required two readings and public notice.
He thought the Resolution would be presented to the BCC either August 11th or August
25th.

Chief Moore stated once the consolidation occurred he would work with
the Assessor and Treasurer to correct tax bills and draw new maps. He should be able to
blend the budgets in the next fiscal year to complete the formal transition.

Commissioner Hartung wondered how the Kid’s Fire Camp went. Chief
Moore stated it went well and he had asked the fire fighters to provide a review to the
Board at the August meeting. Commissioner Hartung wondered if there were any
intentions to bring back the ash can program. Chief Moore confirmed there was a plan to

JULY 21, 2015 PAGE 5



bring the program back. He said they had 25 to 50 cans left, but would make subsequent
purchases and launch the program in August or September along with open burning.
Commissioner Hartung stated he had many comments from people who loved the
program, in fact, one resident told him he used the ash can for ashes in the winter time
and oily rags in the summer time.

Commissioner Lucey stated he recently had an opportunity to meet with
Storey County Manager Pat Whitten, who informed him the station at the Tahoe Regional
Industrial Complex (TRIC) would be fully staffed soon. He asked for an update on the
move of station 14.

Commissioner Jung requested a full timeline to be supplied by the next
concurrent meeting from all of the entities involved in the Computer Aided Dispatch
(CAD) installation. She wanted Chief Moore to do a presentation on how he would
implement the Strategic Plan before the end of the calendar year. She also wanted to have
a discussion regarding the need for a Public Information Officer for social media. She
requested an organizational chart with the span of control of each person s position and
what their duties and responsibilities were. '

There was no public comment or action on this itém.

15-0123F AGENDA ITEM 11 Public Comment:

Tom Noblett from Sun Valley spoke regarding excessive trash and other
items piled up on the properties in his area.'He claimed Chair Berkbigler told the County
Manager she wanted the trash cleaned up.sHe said he had also talked with people at the
Health Department and the Community Services Department and they agreed with him
that they needed to work together to get the area cleaned up. He stated the Fire
Department came out and they were very clear that the trees with dead branches hanging
down were not fire hazards. He'expressed his fear that families would get trapped on the
road behind his property 1f a firc broke out. He hoped Chief Moore would do something
about the issue soon:

: Thonias Daily spoke regarding the grants that the Nevada Department of
Forestry (NDF) -recently awarded for fuel reduction. He stated that $56,000 went to
Storey County, $118,000 went to Living with Fire at University of Nevada Reno (UNR)
and ne money was awarded to the other 10 applicants which were homeowners
associations who put up their own money for fuel reductions.

Cathy Brandhorst spoke of matters of concern to herself.

PAGE 6 JULY 21, 2015



9:51 am, There being no further business to come before the Board, on motion by
Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey, which motion duly carried,

the meeting was adjourned.

ATTEST:

NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire
Protection District

Minutes Prepared By:
Doni Gassaway, Deputy County Clerk

JULY 21, 2015

MARSHA BERKBIGLER, Chair
Truckee Meadows Fire

Protection District and Sierra

Fire Protection District

PAGE 7



To:

Fm:

Re:

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
August 10, 2015

Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Fire Chief’s Report and Statistics for July 2015

Attached are statistical summaries for career and volunteer operations and training for the
month of July 2015.

Other updates are as follows:

1. The District has eight (8) employees and one brush engine currently deployed to various

fires located in California. The Sierra Front team is working on the Dodge Fire located
west/northwest of Gerlach. The fire was held at the California state line and did not
cross into Nevada — although it came close.

. The District completed GIS work on automatic aid to define the aid zones and is now

moving into the programming phase. We have been meeting every two weeks with our
counterparts to discuss the issues. Each agency will be required to individually program
CAD protocols with the appropriate dispatch code and then “accept” the aiding
jurisdiction’s response with a “CAD dot” in each aid zone. The CAD programming
should not take more than 2-3 weeks for TM to complete its work.

. On July 18 - TMFPD, Palomino Volunteers and UNR Cooperative Extension hosted a

Living with Fire and defensible space meeting for residents of Palomino Valley at the
Palomino Valley Fire Station. The meeting was attended by approximately 30
homeowners. There is a high citizen interest in fuels reduction and staff is exploring
ways to assist.

AGENDA ITEM #6A



Living With Fire Presentation — July 18, 2015

. The attached Administrative Interpretation of the 2012 Fire Code is regarding
residential fire sprinklers. A question on how to deal with additions to existing
residences has come up and staff has written the following interpretation when additions
increase the aggregate square footage of the home to greater than 5000. When that
occurs, the District will not require a retrofit of fire sprinklers throughout the home,
unless the addition is 5000 square feet. If that is the case, staff needs to consider water
supply, access, and wildland severity in the decision to add fire sprinklers throughout
new and existing portions of the residence.

This is provided for informational purposes, and if the Board would like to review this
in greater detail, please direct this issue be brought back as a future agenda item.



ADMINISTRATIVE INTERPRETATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL
FIRE CODE, 2012 ED., AS ADOPTED BY THE WASHOE COUNTY BOARD OF FIRE
COMMISSIONERS

Washoe County Code 60 is the governing document for the International Fire Code {IFC}
and International Wild/and Urban Interface Code {IWUJC). 2012 Editions. Washoe County
Code 60 was adopted by the Washoe County Board of Fire Commissioners and Washoe
County Commission August 27, 2013. The International Wild/and Urban Interface Cade,
2012 Ed. was amended in Washoe County Code 60 as follows:

Table 903.2.2 Required Automatic Sprinklers: IRC Structures

The following is the interpretation of the requirements of the IFC amendments, Table
903.2.2, as allowed under Section 104.1, Powers and Duties of the Code Official.

Interpretation of Table 903.2.2 to read as follows:

In the Sierra Fire Protection District and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, an
approved automatic sprinkler system, in accordance with NFPA 13D, shall be installed in
all new residences with a habitable square footage (area) of 5,000 square feet or greater.
Should there be habitable square footage (area) above the garage, the garage shall be
included in the 5,000 square foot calculation, as an under roof calculation of 5,000 square
feet or greater.

Additions to a structure increasing the habitable square footage greater than 5,000 square
feet shall be required to install a monitored fire alarm system throughout the structure to
include a monitored Knox Box and a strobe located above the Knox Box for easy
identification. See Amendments to the IFC in Washoe County Code 60.

This interpretation shall eliminate the fire barrier wall option that existed as an alternate
means and method. There shall be no exceptions to this requirement.

Charles Moore, Fire Chief



To:

Fm:

Re:

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
August 10, 2015

Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Update on Station 14 Development

The District has completed its due diligence on the proposed site for Station 14. The soils test
proved satisfactory for soil bearing pressures, and an environmental survey including testing
soils for contaminants was also satisfactory.

The wetland issue was also satisfactorily resolved.

Before the District can close on the property, a parcel map needs to be created. The schedule
for this is as follows: (The schedule is tight).

1.

= S8 SIS D

August 3-- Application date

Case assignment August 4

Case write-up August 5

Distribute agency review August 7

Agency Comments due August 13

Staff report due August 20

September 10-- Parcel Map Review Committee Meeting

After closing, a rough development schedule is as follows:

A. Solicit proposals for architectural services and select design firm. (October 2015 —

mEHOO®

December 2015)

Special Use Permit application and approval (January 2016 — February 2016)
Building design work (March 2016 — July 2016)

Construction bid (July 2016 - August 2016)

Commence construction September 2016

Occupancy June 2017-August 2017

AGENDA ITEM #6B



¥
FROTECTION DISTHICT

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MONTHLY REPORT

July 2015

The following report contains non-audited figures based on data extracted from the
District’s incident reporting system and Washoe County E-Comm Dispatch.

Monthly Call Volume by Station & Type

STATION/DISTRICT
B &
< ¥
A T R
& T & § ¥ § &
& & X F g § g &S
¢ N 9 Y F & & &
§F ¥ & Ff &g Y &S o
DTS A §F D Q g S &

F &S T 85 4 8 S & .

AL SR B e
INCIDENTTYPE /3 ¥ 4 ¥ & & & 4 8 & & From
Structure Fire 1 1 2
Wildland Fire 1 1 6 1 2 4-_ 15|
Vehicle/Trash/Other Fire 31 1 1 31 1 1 1 1 13
Emergency Medical Services 54] 33 170} 17]) 93] 38 31 17} 25) 2t 7 1] 479|
Motor Vehicle Accident 2 6] 11 1 8 1 7 5 1 4 1 3 50
Rescue 0]
Haz-Mat/Hazardous Condition 5 1 1 3 1 1 2 14
Public Assist 6] 5] 200 3] 100 9 1 4 1 59
Good Intent Call 14 7| 28 S| 24 14f 10 8 51 201 10 - 145
Activated Fire Alarm 1 4 7 1 9 2 1 25
Severe Weather Related 4 1 6 11
Other 1 _ 1
JULY 2015 TOTAL| 89| 54| 237| 26] 155 65| 24] 32| 47| 51| 19] 15| 814
JULY 2014 TOTAL| 89| 69| 226] 29| 155 69 6| 46| 43| 64| 24| 52| 872

In the month of July, 2015 the TMFPD responded to 814 incidents, for a cumulative total of
8,292 incidents in the past twelve months.

AGENDA ITEM #6C

1|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

July 2015
Fire Loss/Save

Property
Loss
20%

Property
Conserved
80%
Total Structure Value: $ 370,147
Total Structure Conserved:  $ 296,910
Total Structure Loss $ 73,237

Fire Loss to Value Comparison — July 2015

Structure Fires

#VWVQ‘WWWWWWV‘).
W a2 3 ES AR E S
{5} o o © 2 8 5 2
EAOCZASES <SS RR

Rolling Year Statistics

TMFPD responded to2 structure
fires in July 20135, for a total of 27
structure fires in the past year. m Structure Fires

*Includes incidents only in Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. Mutual Aid and Automatic Aid calls are excluded from this graph.

Wildland Fires - July 2015

® Wildland Fire

Acres Burned

One Year History: Wildland Fire Acres Burned
350 =
300 —_——
250 +——
200
150 |
100 —
50 | —
0 0.1 05 0
0 " i T T
\,b( \b‘ \b‘ b
Y’O%’ %QQ, Qc}f %04

In the month of July 2015, 293.5 acres were burned. As of July 31, 2015, 300.9 acres burned in the past

twelve months.

2|Page




Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Mutual Aid Given and Received - July 2015

Mutual Aid Given & Received by Department

DEPARTMENT AID GIVEN | AID RECEIVED

Bureau of Land Management 3 2
Carson City FD 0 1
Eastfork FD 0 0
Nevada Division of Forestry 1 2
North Lake Tahoe FPD 0 1
North Lyon County FPD 0 0
Pyramid Lake Fire 3 0
Reno FD 4 1
Reno/Sparks Indian Colony Z 0
Sierra County, CA 0 0
Sparks FD 3 4
Storey County FPD 1 2
Truckee Fire, CA 0 0
US Forest Service 0 0
TOTAL 17 13

The TMFPD received aid 13 times from neighboring agencies and provided aid 17 times based
on NFIRS reporting standards. Additional responses to/from the TMFPD may have occurred but
did not meet the NFIRS definitions for automatic or mutual aid. Only incidents where
representatives from two or more entities are on scene together qualify as aid given or received
by an agency. When one entity handles an incident for another jurisdiction without assistance,
the incident is not classified as auto/mutual aid according to NFIRS, and neither are responses
where one entity cancels its response prior to arriving at the incident.

3|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

SIGNIFICANT INCIDENTS

Significant incidents for the month are reported below. The number of incidents reported in the
Call Volume Table may not exactly match the narrative provided below; i.e. a structure fire that
is limited to a small out building is reported in the Call Volume, however it does not warrant
inclusion below.

Station by Commission District

Station District Commissioner
Station 13 — Stead 5 Herman
Station 14 — Damonte Ranch 2 Lucey
Station 15 — Sun Valley 3/5 Jung / Herman

Station 16 — East Washoe Valley
Station 17 — Spanish Springs Hartung
Station 18 — Cold Springs Herman

2 Lucey
4
5

Station 30 — West Washoe Valley 2 Lucey
5
2
2

Station 35 — Mogul Herman
Station 36 — Arrowcreek Lucey
Station 37 — Hidden Valley Lucey

Station 39 — Galena Forest 2 Lucey

Stations are predominantly within the Commissioner’s District as listed above.

Incidents:

Structure Fire — Station 17 (Spanish Springs); Pyramid Way
Commissioner District 4
Automatic Aid was received from Sparks Fire

On July 3" at 10:02 hours, crews were dispatched to a structure fire on Pyramid Way. Upon
arrival crews found a fully involved single wide mobile home with exposures on two sides.
Responding apparatus were able to contain the fire to the mobile home and limit damage to the
surrounding vegetation.

4 T™M Engines, 1 TM Battalion Chief, 1 TM Deputy Chief and 1 Sparks Engine responded to this
incident.

4|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Structure Fire — Station 36 (Arrowcreek); Tannerwood Dr.
Commissioner District 2

On July 4™ at 05:48 hours, crews were dispatched to a structure fire in District 36. The fire was
on the back deck, with spread into the rear of the structure. The structure was evacuated and
crews were able to suppress the fire from the exterior of the structure fairly quickly. Damage
was limited to the back deck and one corner of the house, with smoke damage to less than 50%
of the interior.

4 TM Engines and 1 TM Battalion Chief responded to this incident.

Vehicle Fire (inside a residence) — Station 36 (Arrowcreek); Stoney Brook Dr
Commissioner District 2

On July 13" at 16:16 hours, crews were dispatched to a report of a structure fire. On arrival the
first arriving unit reported a vehicle was on fire in the garage with no extension to the home at
the time of the initial report. TM crews provided fire attack and quickly knocked the fire down.
Other than light smoke damage to the inside of the garage there was no damage to the residence.
Crews remained on scene to overhaul the vehicle until the vehicle was secured by a towing
agency. The residence was turned back over to the owners once all the proper documentation
was completed and the scene was secured.

4 TM Engines, 1 TM Fire Prevention, and 1 TM Battalion Chief responded to this incident.

Vehicle Extrication — Station 30 (West Washoe Valley); Old Hwy 395 at South Eastlake
Blvd

Commissioner District 2

Mutual Aid provided by Carson City Fire

On July 14™ at 21:16 hours units were dispatched to a motor vehicle accident involving a single
vehicle into a wall. One patient was injured and required extrication from the vehicle. Due to its
proximity to the Carson City Washoe County line, Carson City Fire Department Engine 52 and
Medic 52 were requested to respond. CCFD Medic 52 transported the patient at the request of
REMSA dispatch, as REMSA had no other units available.

2 TM Engines, 1 Battalion Chief, 1 CCFD Engine and 1 CCFD Medic responded to this incident.
Wildland Fire — Aggie Creek Fire, Alaska
Mutual Aid provided at the request of BLM

On July 21* at 16:00 hours, the BLM requested mutual aid to the Aggie Creek Fire in Alaska. 1
TM Equipment Operator responded to the incident and assisted with building a structure

5|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

protection plan, meeting with land owners before returning to the fire line. The crew member
was on scene of the fire assigned to a variety of assignments for 21 days.

1 TM Equipment Operator responded to the incident.

Wildland Fire — Lowell Fire, Placer County, CA
Mutual Aid provided to Cal OES

On July 25™ at 17:00 hours, CAL OES requested mutual aid to the Lowell Fire in Placer County,
CA. 4 TM resources responded to the incident and were assigned as part of a Lake Tahoe
Regional Chief’s strike team with immediate need. 1 TM Captain also went out on the same
strike team as a Strike Team Leader Trainee. The crew member was on scene of the fire
assigned to a variety of assignments for 7 days.

2 TM Captains, 1 Fire Equipment Operator, and 2 Firefighters responded to the incident.

HAZMAT - Station 15 (Cold Springs); Diamond Circle

Commissioner District 3/5

Mutual Aid Provided by RFD and SFD through the Regional Hazmat Team (TRIAD)
2 in/2 out Required for initial entry

On July 27™ at 19:32 hours, units responded to a report of “acid spilled” throughout a residence
in Sun Valley. Upon arrival, resources isolated the affected residence and evacuated one resident
to the north side of the property. Initial entry was made with Engine 15 and the Battalion Chief
to investigate the spill and ensure no victims were present. Approximately 5 gallons of an
unknown substance were strewn throughout the residence, which was dissolving the carpeting
and the flooring. Additionally, a 55 gallon drum was located on the property and the incident
was upgraded to a Level 2 Hazmat incident. This activated the regional Hazmat team (TRIAD)
with resources responding from RFD and SFD. A “Level A” entry was made to identify the
product and secure the building. The substance was identified as Nitric Acid, which is a highly
corrosive liquid. After identification and containment, the property was turned over to the
Washoe County Health District for cleanup and mitigation activities. No injuries to any
responders or the public were reported. Washoe County Sheriff’s Office was also involved in
the investigation aspects of the incident.

2 TM Engines, | TM HAZMAT, 1 RFD Engine, 1 RFD HAZMAT/Decon, 1 SFD HAZMAT, 1
TM Training Captain, 1 TM Battalion Chief, and 1 RFD Battalion Chief responded to this
incident, for a total of 24 Fire Personnel, 1 Health District Representative, and WCSO Sheriff
Deputies.

Wildland Fire — Station 18 (Cold Springs) — Fort Sage Mountains
Commissioner District 5
Mutual Aid Provided by BLM

6|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

On July 21% at 15:30 hours, BLM notified TMFPD of a wildland fire in the Fort Sage Mountains,
east of Doyle, CA. BLM stated it was determined the 300+ acre fire was on the Nevada side.
Forward progression had been stopped prior to the call, and no additional assistance was
necessary from TMFPD per BLM request.

HAZMAT - Station 14 Hazmat (Damonte Ranch) responded from Commissioner District 2
Location of Scene 1: RFD District 1; Mill St.

Location of Scene 2; RFD District 4: Hillside Ave

Mutual Aid Provided to RFD and SFD through the Regional Hazmat Team (TRIAD)

2 in/2 out Required for initial entry

On July 29" at 01:36 hours, crews were dispatched for a TRIAD Hazmat Callout. Hazmat 14
and Engine 14 responded for a possible potassium cyanide spill on Mill St. Crews responded,
were assigned backup entry team, and awaited arrival of Washoe County SWAT team due to law
enforcement issues. Once SWAT members took the suspect into custody, they were swabbed
and air-monitored for traces of hazardous substances. TM crews were reassigned as backup
entry team to retrieve hazardous materials from a second location on Highland Ave. No traces of
hazardous materials were found outside of the container, and the substance was turned over to
Washoe County Health for further analysis. Crews cleared the scene at 08:43 hours.

1TM Engine, 1 TM HAZMAT Trailer, 1 SFD Medic, and members of the RFD Hazmat team
responded to this incident.

Wildland Fire — Humboldt/Del Norte Unit of CAL FIRE
Mutual Aid provided to CAL FIRE

On July 25" at 12:00 hours, TM Crews on assignment to the Lowell Fire in Placer County, CA
transitioned to Incident CA-HUU-005608. Firefighters are fighting a series of lightning fires,
building containment lines utilizing crews and dozers on the fires.

2 TM Captains, 1 Fire Equipment Operator, and 2 Firefighters responded to the incident.

Lightning Plans — District Wide
Lightning Plans were activated throughout the District on the following dates:

July 1,2015 at 17:01 hours
July 3,2015 at 15:18 hours
July 6,2015 at 15:27 hours
July 7,2015 at 10:34 hours
July 9,2015 at 12:27 hours
July 21, 2015 at 12:41 hours

7|Page



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Monthly Report

Training

TRIAD Hazmat Training at Sparks Fire; Biological and Chemical Threats
Wildland Training and Sand Table Exercises

Water Tender Driver Training for new hires and Palomino VFD members
VFD Fit Testing

Crews were trained on new Type III Brush Engines

FISDAP EMS Refresher Course

Completed EMS Training: Orotracheal Intubation

Completed EMS Training: EMS Communication and Documentation
Completed training on Hearing Conservation

Completed training regarding Bed Bugs

Accomplishments

Hosted a ride-along for new Dispatch employee
Hosted ride-alongs for 2 AEMT students with Pyramid Lake Fire
Hosted a ride-along for a Lemmon Valley (former Peavine) Volunteer

Station 30 (West Washoe Valley) hosted a Public Education station tour for Cub Scouts
Station 36 (Arrowcreek) hosted a Public Education event at Hunsberger Elementary

Participated in Public Education at Reno Aces Game

Completed hydrant testing form nearly all stations in the South Valleys
Completed Career Stations Readiness and Life Safety Inspections
Attended Living With Fire Presentation at Palomino Valley
Completed F Endorsement drivers’ testing for new hires

8/Page



WASHOE COUNTY, NV
FIRE

FROTECTION DISTRICT

VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT

July 2015

The following report contains non-audited figures based on data extracted from the
District’s incident reporting system and Washoe County E-Comm Dispatch.

Monthly Call Volume by Station & Type

STATION/DISTRICT
s 8
Q
e syt of
S TS LEC &
> j & A$ .;99 A$ g}' g A$ o ﬁ '
VOLUNTEER ?,,«f*ﬁé-”ﬁf’?fﬁg
RESPONSE: nﬁ'é????é’f’*?ff”,@??,"?w,‘?
__INCIDENTTYPE § § F 8 & & & &S & & Srorar
Structure Fire 0
Wildland Fire 4 1|1 6
[Vehicle/Trash/Other Fire 0
Emergency Medical Services 1]13]1 213 10
Motor Vehicle Accident 111 1 3
Rescue . 0
HazMat/Hazardous Condition 1 1
Public Assist _ 1 1
Good IntentCall | t|1|2]1]2 1 1] 10
Activated Fire Alarm 0
Severe T’Veathe_r Related 213 2 7
Lightning Plan 0
Other 0
JULY 2015 TOTAL 114102616 )]4]2]0]1]1 38

In the month of July, 2015 the Truckee Meadows Volunteers responded to 31 incidents and 7
Lightning Plans.

AGENDA ITEM #6D

1|Page



SIGNIFICANT INCIDENTS

Significant incidents for the month are reported below. The number of incidents reported in the
Call Volume Table may not exactly match the narrative provided below; i.e. a structure fire that is
limited to a small out building is reported in the Call Volume, however it does not warrant
inclusion below.

Incidents:

Lightning Plans — District Wide
Lightning Plans were activated throughout the District on the following dates:

July 1, 2015 at 17:01 hours
July 3,2015 at 15:18 hours
July 6,2015 at 15:27 hours
July 17,2015 at 10:34 hours
July 9, 2015 at 12:27 hours
July 21, 2015 at 12:41 hours

TRAINING AND ACTIVITY
HOURS | TOTAL
STATION ACTIVITY CREWS PER HOURS
Cold Springs VFD CECBEMS Communication and Documentation 1 1 1
CECBEMS Fundamentals of 12 Lead ECG 1 1 1
Operation and Interpretation
CECBEMS Obstetrical Emergencies Basic 1 1 1
CECBEMS Orotracheal Intubation I 1 1
CECBEMS Pharmacology Basic 1 1 1
Business and training meeting @ 321 7 2 14
Heavy brush truck vehicle maintenance performed 5 2 10
on B321/B322
Review of current prevention measures with in the 7 2 14
district and surrounding areas
Safety discussion and review of policies at Station 3 2 6
321
Measles Review 1 0.25 0.25

2|Page



Cold Springs VFD, | RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 2 )
cont’d (MOD #4)
Cold Springs Total 51.25
Galena VFD Bloodborne Pathogens Safety 1 1 1
Fleet Program Defensive Driving Strategies for 1 1 1
Emergency Vehicle Operators
Harris Battery Charger Review 1 0.5 0.5
Hazard Communication 1 1 1
Respiratory Protection 1 1 1
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 2 2
(MOD #1)
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 2 )
(MOD #2)
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 2 2
(MOD #3)
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 2 2 4
(MOD #4)
Galena VFD 14.5
Gerlach VFD 1.3.3 TMFPD Code of Conduct 1 0.25 0.25
CECBEMS Fundamentals of 12 Lead ECG 1 1 1
Operation and Interpretation
CECBEMS HIV/AIDS Awareness 1 2 2
CECBEMS Medical, Ethical, and Legal Issues | 1 1
CECBEMS Musculoskeletal Injuries Basic 1 1 1
CECBEMS Obstetrical Emergencies Basic 1 1 1
CECBEMS Patient Assessment Advanced 1 1 1
CECBEMS Pharmacology Basic 1 1 1
Ebola Infection Control 1 0.5 0.5
First Responder Operations Level Refresher (MOD 1 2 2
#2)
Lock-Out / Tag-Out 1 1 1
NFPA 1001 Loss Control 1 1 1
NFPA 1021 Pre-Incident Planning 1 1 1
NFPA 1500 Respiratory Protection 1 1 1
TargetSolutions User Overview Video 1 0.25 0.25
Gerlach VFD Total 15
Lemmon Valley o . | ) 1
VFD CECBEMS Communication and Documentation
CECBEMS Heat Illness and Emergencies 1 1 1
CECBEMS Musculoskeletal Injuries Basic 2 1 2
CECBEMS Orotracheal Intubation 1 1 1
CECBEMS Pediatric Emergencies Basic 1 2 2
Have members familiarize themselves with new 7 3 21
station, district familiarization, location of hydrants.

3|Page



Lemmon Valley
VFD, Cont’d

Trained on drip torch. Parts of drip torch, how to
assemble, fuel mixture, ways to light drip torch, how
to properly extinguish drip torch, safety practices
while using drip torch.&#10;&#10;Shelter training
with practice shelters

District Familiarization

21

Weekly apparatus inspection and maintenance

Fire Industry Driver Operator

Lemmon Valley VFD

Total

66

Palomino Valley
VED

Porta tank/drafting practice. Set up 2500 gal porta
tank at park. Dumped 2200 gal into tank; drafted
80% of this back into tender via 3 hard suction

2.5

2.5

Vehicle and Pump Checks

0.5

0.5

Vehicle Checks, washing the vehicles, cleaning out
and preparing the bays for Community Living fire
Fire Event

1.75

3.5

Watched some videos on wildland fire, similar to
S130 refresher training. Discussed impact of
emergency ops and EMS assist on mental health.
Heard update of volunteer who was injured in July
in ATV accident, currently in ICU in Elko,
expecting long recovery process; several affected
volunteers; counselor to visit Thursday if anyone
desires assistance. &#10;&#10;Received Bendix
King radio from Chief Felding, and frequencies
sheet, and monitor frequency instructions. A fire
call is toned out over the EU SO TE channel, Eureka
Sheriffs Office-Tenabo (this is the station in
Crescent Valley). Also, a text message is sent to our
personal cell phones.

1.5

1.5

Observed cone course driver training w/ both Type 1
and Water Tenders; drove course with Tender 13,
passed on first try, however [ did run over edges of 7
cones. So I have room for improvement. This was
my first formal EVOC training w/ Cptn Johnson.

NFPA 1021 Pre-Incident Planning

Station Cleaning for Living with Fire Community
Event

2.5

2.5

Target Solution & FireRMS training documentation

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher
(MOD #3)

RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher

(MOD #4)

Palomino Valley VFD Total

Red Rock VFD

Red Rock VFD Total

4|Page



Silver Lake VFD CECBEMS MRSA Infections 1 1 1
CECBEMS Operating an AED 1 1 1
CECBEMS Patients with Special Challenges 1 1 1
CECBEMS Respiratory System A&P Review 1 1 1
Tender operation for drafting. Position for drafting
and procedure for correct operation. Discussion first, 2 1 2
then practical skills was completed.
Hearing Conservation 1 1 1
Silver Lake VFD Total 7
South Valleys VFD | CECBEMS Communication and Documentation 1 1 1
NFPA 1500 Respiratory Protection 1 1 1
RT-130 1 2 2
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 2 2
(MOD #3)
RT-130: Annual Wildland Fire Safety Refresher 1 ) 2
(MOD #4)
The First Responder's Role in Fire Investigation | 0.5 0.5
South Valleys VFD Total 85
Verdi VFD CECBEMS Communication and Documentation 1 1 1
CECBEMS Musculoskeletal Injuries Basic 1 1 1
NFPA 1001 Firefighter Personal Protective 1
Equipment 1 1
Verdi VFD Total 3

5|Page



ook WEE ME40

L

- . TN TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
"“““"’: M STAFF REPORT Chg/igilc\g Ui
Board Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 Legal )
Risk Mgt. E
DATE: July 28, 2015 i
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) to CAD link between Reno, Washoe County,
Sparks and REMSA dispatch centers. (Requested by Commissioner Jung).

SUMMARY

This item is a presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on the
status of the CAD to CAD link between Reno, Washoe County, Sparks and REMSA dispatch
centers.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

On July 21, 2015, Commissioner Jung requested an update on the status of CAD to CAD links
between dispatching agencies.

On May 22, 2014, the Washoe County District Board of Health approved an exclusive franchise
agreement with REMSA for ambulance service within Washoe County. The initial term of this
agreement is through June 30, 2030 with the potential for two, six year renewals (maximum term
through June 30, 2042).

BACKGROUND

In an effort to improve communications on EMS call status, it was agreed in the Amended and
Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service that a CAD to CAD link would be
established between the dispatch agencies. The CAD to CAD link would provide real time
information on EMS calls for each agency making the response, thereby eliminating the need for
dispatchers to telephone each other with updates or questions.

The Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service in Article 5 states:

“REMSA shall furnish at its own expense a system status management (SSM) based
computer aided dispatch (CAD) system. When the Washoe County/Reno PSAP and Sparks PSAP
Tiburon CAD systems are installed and upgraded the REMSA CAD system shall at a minimum,
be capable of interfacing in real time with the Washoe County/Reno and Sparks CAD systems
(henceforth public safety CADS); contributing to a complete electronic record of response times
from all dispatch activities.

AGENDA ITEM #7



BOFC Meeting August 18, 2015
Page 2 of 2

REMSA shall furnish and maintain at its own expense its share of a two-way interface
between the public safety CADs and REMSA’s CAD. This interface shall at a minimum provide
for the instantaneous and simultaneous transmission of call-related information and unit status
updates between the public safety CADs and REMSA’s CAD. At a minimum, this interface
shall facilitate

a) CAD call creation and forwarding to one or more agencies;

b) Real-time resource availability and status changes of all participating agencies;

c¢) The capability of communicating between PSAPs and field units in which mobile data
terminals (MDTs) are installed; and

d) The ability to view run-time information for all calls.”

Status Update:

WCSO Chief Deputy Russ Pederson provided me a copy of an email with an update to County staff
with respect to implementation. That email reads, in part:

Although Tiburon (now Tri-Tech) was upgraded recently, Reno, Sparks and Washoe County Tech
services are still having issues with the system. Once the upgrades are stabilized and the “Go Live’
project has been completed, to include Sparks going live, the connection solution with REMSA can’t
get started. — Sparks is not expected to “go live” until October.

5

In case you don’t know, the City of Reno maintains the Tiburon servers. The connection with
REMSA will fall on the City of Reno, not the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) or Washoe
County. Please keep in mind the WCSO and County will help facilitate the discussion but the
connection will have to occur through the City of Reno.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Fire Commissioners accept a presentation on the status of the
CAD to CAD link between Reno, Washoe County, Sparks and REMSA dispatch centers.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept a presentation on an update the status of the CAD to CAD link between Reno,
Washoe County, Sparks and REMSA dispatch centers.”



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

U
F{RE
FROTECTION GIATRIGT

STAFF REPORT
Board Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 CWACM __
Finance
Legal DwV
DATE: August 10, 2015 Risk Mgt. Lo
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners o
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion and possible action to accept a presentation from the 2015 Kids
Fire Camp Leadership Committee. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Presentation, discussion and possible action to accept a presentation from the 2015 Kids Fire Camp
Leadership Committee.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities.

PREVIOUS ACTION

On March 24, 2015, the Board of Fire Commissioners accepted a presentation from the 2015 Kids Fire
Camp Leadership Committee.

BACKGROUND

Together, on July 9, 2014, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, Local 3895 and Washoe County
Parks hosted the first Annual Kids Fire Camp. The 3-day camp was conducted at beautiful Camp
WeChMe located in the Galena Creek Park with 29 youths between the ages of 11 and 14. The camp
was designed to teach camp attendees the history of fire service, CPR Awareness, water safety, back
country survival, firefighting and rescue techniques.

Once again, on June 23, 2015, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, Local 3895 and Washoe
County Parks hosted the second Annual Kids Fire Camp at Camp WeCHMe with 39 youths between the
ages of 11 and 14.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Fire Commissioners accept a presentation from the 2015 Kids Fire
Camp Leadership Committee.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept a presentation from the 2015 Kids Fire Camp Leadership Committee”

AGENDA ITEM #8



Q.\;C-“Eflfuoo,,
IS TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PAGTOITION Qa3 THICT

STAFF REPORT Chlgl/ix?aizg pA
Board Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 Legal {0 /
Risk Mgt. ﬁﬁ}
DATE: July 8, 2015 HR
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners

FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on District
Ash Can Program (All Commissioner Districts — Requested by Commissioner Hartung)

SUMMARY

This item is a presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff regarding an update on the
District’s Ash Can Program.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

On January 28, 2014, the Board of Fire Commissioners accepted a donation to support the Ash Can
Program.

BACKGROUND

The District has experienced several fires related to fireplace ash, charcoal briquettes and oil soaked
rags. While the ash cans were intended to heighten awareness to the dangers of putting fire place ash
outside to cool, the cans can also serve to prevent unintended fires for oil soak rags and charcoal
briquette ashes.

With heating season and Fire Prevention week approaching, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
is planning to educate residents on the proper disposal of fireplace ash, briquette ash and oil soaked rags
by providing residents of Washoe County with an ash can to assist with proposal disposal practices.
Each can contains information to properly dispose of ash and oil soaked rags. Nationally, improper ash
disposal from indoor fireplaces and wood burning stoves causes thousands of fires every year.

On the next page are statistics from last year’s distribution:

AGENDA ITEM #9



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District

Number of Ash Cans

District 13 Stead 42
District 14 Damonte 18
District 15 Sun Valley 10
District 16 Washoe Valley 15
District 17 Spanish Springs 20
District 18 Cold Springs 17
District 30 Bowers Mansion 2
District 35 Verdi 7
District 36 Arrowcreek 18
District 37 Hidden Valley 6
District 39 Galena / Saint James 2
Total 157
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection
District 5
City of Reno 104
City of Sparks 13
Total 122
Grand
Total 279
FISCAL IMPACT

BOFC Meeting August 18, 2015
Page 2 of 2

TMEFPD Currently still has a small cache of cans left over from the original order and will purchase

additional cans prior to the fall program.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Fire Commissioners accept a presentation on an update of the Ash

Can Program.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept a presentation on an update of the Ash Can Program”



SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

WASHOE COUNTY

PROTECTION DISTRICT

STAFF REPORT CIY:I{ACM.
Board Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 “ﬁg‘:’i ¥
Risk Mgt. _[DF
HR
DATE: Aug 10, 2015
TO: Sierra Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners

FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and possible action to approve a Lease Agreement between Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection and the United States Bureau of Land Management for property
located at 1105 Longview Drive, Reno NV., APN 081-040-01. (Commission District #1)

SUMMARY

This item is a Public Hearing and possible action to approve a Lease Agreement between Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection and the United States Bureau of Land Management for property located at
1105 Longview Drive, Reno NV., APN 081-040-01.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

On July 21, 2015, the Sierra Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners approved a
Resolution declaring its intent to lease property at 1105 Longview Drive, Reno, NV APN 081-040-01 to
the United States Bureau of Land Management.

BACKGROUND

Shortly after the Resolution was approved the BLM notified TM Staff that it no longer desired to lease
the property. Because the Resolution directed staff to publish notice of a hearing on the proposed lease
and set a hearing on the same, the hearing has been placed on the agenda.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board decline to approve a Lease Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection and the United States Bureau of Land Management for property located at 1105 Longview
Drive, Reno NV. APN 081-040-01

AGENDA ITEM #10



BOFC Meeting, August 18, 2015
Page 2 of 2

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation not to approve the Lease Agreement, a possible
motion would be:

“I move not to approve a Lease Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection and the United

States Bureau of Land Management for property located at 1105 Longview Drive, Reno NV. APN 081-
040-01.”



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 18" day of
August 2015, by and between Sierra Fire Protection District, Washoe County, Nevada,
hereinafter the “DISTRICT” and the United States of America, Department of the Interior,
Bureau of Land Management, Nevada State Office, Carson City District, hereinafter “BLM”.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is the sole owner of the Premises located at 11005
Longview Lane, Reno, NV APN 081-040-01, Washoe County which area is not currently
needed for the public purposes of the DISTRICT, and

WHEREAS, BLM is a Federal agency public agency and Federal fire partner for the
region; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire by this Agreement to define their respective rights,
duties and liabilities relating to the Premises; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the

parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION ONE
DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES
DISTRICT hereby leases unto BLM approximately 2400 square feet of space
(Premises”) in the building generally known as the Fire Truck Storage Barn - Peavine

Volunteer Fire Station #331 (“building™), together with parking areas, grounds and entrances.

SECTION TWO
TERM AND TERMINATION
The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2015 and shall terminate on

July 31, 2018 unless terminated by either party as provided herein. Either party may



terminate this agreement for any reason upon 30 days written notice without penalty, charge
or sanction of any kind. Upon termination of this Agreement, BLM shall quit the Premises
peaceably, with no damage to the Premises; normal wear and tear excepted and remove all of
its property therein.

A. Consideration: DISTRICT agrees to rent Premises to BLM for the sum of

($1,500) One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars per month, which payment shall be paid on or
before the 1* day of the month.

B. Use: BLM shall not conduct or at any time knowingly permit its
employees, agents or visitors to conduct activity on the Premises that is unlawful or in
violation of any federal or state statute, code or regulation. The Premises shall not be used
for storage, transfer, processing, etc. of any toxic or hazardous materials.

C. Consent for Additional Occupants: DISTRICT consents to the use and/or

occupancy of Premises by Federal agencies other than BLM, in the sole discretion of BLM;
however, BLM acknowledges that all obligations of the Agreement remain the sole
responsibility of BLM. BLM shall not use or permit the Premises or any part thereof to be
used for any purpose other than the conduct of the necessary business of the BLM or its
assigns.

D. Dissolution of District. BLM has been informed and hereby acknowledges

that the DISTRICT may consolidate, merge or otherwise join with the Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District, hereinafter “TMFPD”, and that such action may result in the
dissolution of DISTRICT and transfer of all DISTRICT assets, property, debts, liabilities,
equipment, leases, contracts and other obligations. BLM agrees that, upon the dissolution of
DISTRICT, all DISTRICT rights and duties under this Agreement shall automatically
transfer and be assumed by TMFPD without need for further amendment to this Agreement,
provided that DISTRICT shall reasonably notify BLM of the dissolution and assignment of
this Agreement. Following such notice, payments shall be made to TMFPD until termination
of the agreement.

E. Property “as is”: BLM understands and agrees to lease the building,

property and all property affixed to the building or property “as is” with no expectation of

improvements or changes by the DISTRICT unless otherwise described herein.

2



F. Utilities and Telephone: BLM shall pay for all utilities, including propane,

electric, internet, cable, and temporary sanitation. The DISTRICT shall pay for trash pickup.
G. Maintenance: BLM agrees to maintain the building and grounds in a clean

and orderly manner at all times, including, but not limited to removal of weeds and

vegetation in and around the building and propane tank, and replace light bulbs as necessary.

H. Right of Entry and Inspection: Upon reasonable notice, the DISTRICT

retains the right to enter and inspect the premises and grounds from time to time.

SECTION THREE
CONDITION, ALTERATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS
A. Premises “As Is”: DISTRICT hereby acknowledges that the Premises are

in good condition. BLM acknowledges that the Premises are acceptable to BLM and shall
not be altered, repaired or changed without the prior written consent of DISTRICT.

B. Alterations: BLM agrees that it shall not paint, erect partitions, install or
change any doors or windows, or place any nails, screws or other implements or fasteners
into the woodwork or walls without the prior written consent of the DISTRICT. The parties
agree that all the erections, additions, fixtures and improvements, excepting only decorative
items and movable office furniture, made in or upon the Premises shall be BLM’s property
and shall remain upon the Premises at the termination of this Agreement by lapse of time or
otherwise, without compensation to Lessee.

C. Improvements and Repairs: DISTRICT reserves the right from time to time

at its own expense to make such improvements, alterations, renovations, changes, and repairs
in and about the Premises as DISTRICT shall deem desirable or necessary.

D. Keys and Codes: DISTRICT shall provide any and all keys and codes for

all locks and access to the Premises.
E. Repairs: Lessee agrees that all damage done to the Premises by Lessee or
its invitees, assigns, or any person present because of Lessee’s occupation of the Premises,

shall be paid by Lessee.



SECTION FOUR
INDEMNIFICATION
Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 41 and without waiving any provisions
thereof, BLM shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend DISTRICT from and against any
loss, damage, claim, suit or liability due to injury, including death, or property damage, to
any third party arising out of the negligent or alleged negligent acts or omissions of BLM its
agents, contractors or employees, arising out of the use of the Premises or BLM’s duties and

responsibilities under this Agreement.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 41 and without waiving any provisions
thereof, DISTRICT shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend BLM from and against any
loss, damage, claim, suit or liability due to injury, including death, or property damage, to
any third party arising out of the negligent or alleged negligent acts or omissions of the
DISTRICT, its agents, contractors or employees, concerning the Premises and the Lessor’s

duties and responsibilities pursuant to this Agreement.

SECTION FIVE
INSURANCE

DISTRICT, at its sole cost and expense, shall:
(1) Secure and maintain fire and extended insurance on the building in which the Premises is
located in an amount and coverage determined by Lessor during the term or any extended
term of this Agreement.
(2) Secure and maintain an Insurance Program, of comprehensive or commercial general
liability coverage (occurrence form), in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per

occurrence, and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate during the term of this Agreement.

BLM shall be liable for all damages caused by the exercise of rights granted herein, to the
extent authorized by the Federal Tort Claims Act 28 U.S.C. Sections 2671-2680 and the
Disputes Clause FAR 52-233-1.



SECTION SIX
NOTICES

All notices and demands which may be required to be served upon the respective

parties to this Agreement shall be in writing and may be served either personally or by US

regular mail, postage prepaid, addressed:

As to DISTRICT:

Fire Chief
Sierra Fire Protection District
PO Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520
As to BLM:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and year

first above written.

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

By

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair

Attest:
Nancy Parent, Washoe County Clerk

BLM

By

Name and Title:

Attest:






